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2012 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REPORT

Management Report

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Nalcor Energy, and all information in the Business and Financial Report, 

are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of Directors.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles, applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year. The preparation of financial statements 

necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the 

current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. The financial statements have been properly 

prepared within reasonable limits of materiality and in light of information available up to April 23, 2013. Financial information 

presented elsewhere in the Business and Financial Report is consistent with that in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded 

and that reliable financial information is available on a timely basis. The system includes formal policies and procedures and an 

organizational structure that provides for the appropriate delegation of authority and segregation of responsibilities. An internal 

audit department independently evaluates the effectiveness of these internal controls on an ongoing basis, and reports its 

findings to management and to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

The responsibility of the external auditor, Deloitte & Touche LLP, is to express an independent, professional opinion on whether 

the Consolidated Financial Statements are fairly presented in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

The Auditors’ Report outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibility for 

financial reporting and internal controls. The Audit Committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditors and 

the external auditors to satisfy itself that each group has properly discharged its respective responsibility and to review the 

Consolidated Financial Statements before recommending approval by the Board of Directors. The internal and external auditors 

have full and free access to the Audit Committee, with and without the presence of management.

Ed Martin                   Derrick Sturge 
President and Chief Executive Officer    Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Lieutenant-Governor in Council

Province of Newfoundland and Labrador

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Nalcor Energy, which comprise the consolidated balance 

sheet as at December 31, 2012, and the consolidated statements of income and retained earnings, comprehensive income and 

cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 

with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our  

audit opinion. 

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Nalcor Energy 

as at December 31, 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian 

generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants
St. John’s, NL
Canada
April 23, 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at December 31 (millions of dollars) Notes 2012 2011

ASSETS     
Current assets     

 Cash and cash equivalents  12.1   18.7

 Short-term investments  11.5  16.9

 Accounts receivable   125.0 163.6

 Current portion of regulatory assets  6 2.2   2.8

 Inventory  62.1   63.5

 Prepaid expenses  5.6   4.8

 Derivative assets  0.1   0.2

   218.6  270.5

Property, plant and equipment  4  2,435.0  2,109.5

Petroleum and natural gas properties  5 376.0 304.2

Regulatory assets  6 62.8 63.6

Other long-term assets  7  354.5  294.0

   3,446.9  3,041.8

LIABILITIES      
Current liabilities     

 Short-term borrowings 10 125.0 - 

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  198.1  156.1

 Current portion of long-term debt  10 8.2   8.2

 Current portion of regulatory liabilities  6 169.0 137.6

 Current portion of deferred credits  9 7.2   11.3

 Current portion of asset retirement obligations 11 1.4  -

 Derivative liabilities  -  0.2

   508.9  313.4

Long-term debt  10 1,125.9   1,131.5

Regulatory liabilities  6 33.2   33.3

Asset retirement obligations  11 30.0 24.8

Deferred credits 9 28.0 -

Long-term payables  12 82.4   42.7

Employee future benefits  13 73.6  66.4

   1,882.0 1,612.1

SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY                    

 Share capital  14 122.5  122.5

 Contributed capital  14 435.8 390.5

   558.3  513.0

 Accumulated other comprehensive income  14  43.6  46.4

 Retained earnings  963.0 870.3

   1,006.6  916.7

   1,564.9  1,429.7

   3,446.9  3,041.8

Commitments and contingencies (Note 22)  

Subsequent events (Note 24)    
    
See accompanying notes

On Behalf of the Board

    

Ed Martin                  Gerald Shortall 
Director    Director
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Consolidated Statement of Income & Retained Earnings

For the year ended December 31 (millions of dollars) Notes 2012 2011

Revenue 

 Energy sales 15  710.4   700.0

 Other revenue 15 15.7  14.1

    726.1   714.1

Expenses      

 Fuels  182.4  154.9

 Power purchased   60.8  52.9

 Operating costs  16  206.9  200.1

 Net finance expense 19 73.6  70.9

 Amortization and depletion  79.3  85.2

 Other income and expense   0.4  (2.8)

 Regulatory adjustments 6 30.0  24.1

    633.4  585.3

Net income   92.7  128.8

Retained earnings at beginning of year   870.3  741.5

Retained earnings at end of year   963.0  870.3

See accompanying notes

For the year ended December 31 (millions of dollars) Notes 2012 2011

Net income    92.7    128.8

Other comprehensive (loss) income  14   (2.8)  19.1

Comprehensive income    89.9   147.9
     
See accompanying notes

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 (millions of dollars) Notes 2012 2011

Cash provided by (used in)      

Operating activities      

 Net income   92.7  128.8

 Adjusted for items not involving a cash flow      

 Amortization and depletion  79.3 85.2

 Accretion  2.7 0.5

 Increase in employee future benefits  7.2 6.0

 Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  3.6 (1.9)

 Other  0.4 0.6

   185.9  219.2

Changes in non-cash working capital balances 20 113.9 (52.2)

   299.8 167.0

Financing activities      

 Increase in contributed capital  45.3 16.4

 Increase in deferred credits  23.9 8.7

 Short-term borrowings  125.0 -

 Increase in long-term payables  37.5 38.1

   231.7  63.2

      

Investing activities      

 Additions to property, plant and equipment  (389.1) (190.7)

 Additions to petroleum and natural gas properties  (88.3) (63.2)

 Increase in other long-term assets  (69.6) (5.7)

        Decrease (increase) in short-term investments  5.4 (1.2)

 Proceeds on disposition of property, plant and equipment  3.5 4.8

   (538.1) (256.0)

Net decrease in cash  (6.6) (25.8)

Cash position at beginning of year  18.7 44.5

Cash position at end of year  12.1  18.7

      

Cash position is represented by      

 Cash  12.1  18.7

 Cash equivalents  -  -

   12.1  18.7

Supplementary cash flow information (Note 20)        
    
See accompanying notes
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.  DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Nalcor Energy (Nalcor) is incorporated under a special act of the Legislature of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador  

(the Province) as a Crown corporation and its business includes the development, generation and sale of electricity, oil and gas, 

industrial fabrication and energy marketing. Nalcor’s head office is located in St. John’s, Newfoundland and Labrador.

1.1  SUBSIDIARIES

Nalcor holds interests in the following subsidiaries:

Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro (Hydro) is incorporated under a special act of the Legislature of the Province. The principal 

activity of Hydro is the generation, transmission and sale of electricity.  Hydro’s operations include both regulated and non-

regulated activities.

Nalcor Energy - Oil and Gas Inc. (Oil and Gas) is incorporated under the Corporations Act of Newfoundland and Labrador.  

Oil and Gas has a broad mandate to engage in upstream and downstream sectors of the oil and gas industry including exploration, 

development, production, transportation and processing.

Nalcor Energy – Bull Arm Fabrication Inc. (Bull Arm Fabrication) is incorporated under the Corporations Act of Newfoundland 

and Labrador. Bull Arm Fabrication is Atlantic Canada’s largest industrial fabrication site and has a fully integrated infrastructure 

to support large-scale fabrication and assembly. Its facilities include onshore fabrication halls and shops, a dry-dock and a  

deepwater site. 

In 2012, Nalcor created new subsidiaries as part of advancing the Muskrat Falls Project. The new subsidiaries are associated with 

the development, construction, financing and operation the Labrador-Island Link and include the Labrador-Island Link General 

Partner Corporation(LIL GP) and the Labrador-Island Link Holding Corporation (LIL Holdco). Nalcor also created the Labrador-Island 

Link Partnership (LIL Partnership) in accordance with the Labrador-Island Link Limited Partnership Agreement to develop the 

Labrador-Island link. LIL Holdco holds 100% of the Class A Units.

Nalcor also has two inactive subsidiaries, Gull Island Power Corporation (GIPCo) and Lower Churchill Development Corporation 

(LCDC). 

1.2  JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Nalcor holds interests in the following jointly controlled entities:

Churchill Falls (Labrador) Corporation Limited (Churchill Falls) is incorporated under the laws of Canada and owns and operates 

a hydroelectric generating plant and related transmission facilities situated in Labrador which has a rated capacity of  

5,428 megawatts (MW). Nalcor owns 65.8% of Churchill Falls. 

Twin Falls Power Corporation (Twin Falls) is incorporated under the laws of Canada and has developed a 225 MW hydroelectric 

generating plant on the Unknown River in Labrador. The plant has been inoperative since 1974. Churchill Falls owns 33.33% of 

Twin Falls.

Nalcor and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled companies, other than Twin Falls, are exempt from paying income taxes under 

Section 149 (l)(d) of the Income Tax Act.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1  BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  

2.2  PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Nalcor and its subsidiary companies: Hydro  

(100% owned), Oil and Gas (100% owned), Bull Arm Fabrication (100% owned), LIL GP (100% owned), LIL Holdco (100% owned), 

LIL Partnership (100% owned), GIPCo (100% owned) and LCDC (51% owned). Intercompany transactions and balances have been 

eliminated upon consolidation.

Effective June 18, 1999, Hydro, Churchill Falls and Hydro-Quebec entered into a shareholders’ agreement which provided, among 

other matters, that certain of the strategic operating, financing and investing policies of Churchill Falls be subject to approval 

jointly by representatives of Hydro and Hydro-Quebec on the Board of Directors of Churchill Falls.  Although Hydro retains its 

65.8% ownership interest, the agreement changed the nature of the relationship between Hydro and Hydro-Quebec, with respect 

to Churchill Falls, from that of majority and minority shareholders, respectively, to that of joint venturers.  Accordingly, Hydro has 

applied the proportionate consolidation method of accounting for its interest in Churchill Falls subsequent to the effective date 

of the shareholders’ agreement.

Churchill Falls holds 33.33% of the equity share capital of Twin Falls and is a party with other shareholders in a participation 

agreement which gives Churchill Falls joint control of Twin Falls.  This investment is accounted for by the proportionate consolidation 

method.

Substantially all of Oil and Gas’ activities are conducted jointly with others and accordingly these statements reflect only Nalcor’s 

proportionate interest in such activities.

2.3  USE OF ESTIMATES

Preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 

reported and disclosed in these statements and related notes.  Key areas where management has made complex or subjective 

judgements include the fair value and recoverability of assets, the reported amounts of revenue and expenses, litigation, 

environmental and asset retirement obligations, amortization and depletion, property, plant and equipment, the valuation of 

oil and gas reserves and related depletion and other employee future benefits.  Actual results may differ from these estimates, 

including changes as a result of future decisions made by the Newfoundland and Labrador Board of Commissioners of Public 

Utilities (PUB), and these differences could be material.

2.4  RATES AND REGULATIONS

Hydro’s revenues from its electrical sales to most customers within the province are subject to rate regulation by the PUB. 

Hydro’s borrowing and capital expenditure programs are also subject to review and approval by the PUB. Rates are set through 

periodic general rate applications utilizing a cost of service (COS) methodology. The allowed rate of return on rate base is 7.4%  

(2011 - 7.4%). Hydro applies various accounting policies that differ from enterprises that do not operate in a rate regulated 

environment. Generally these policies result in the deferral and amortization of costs or credits which will be recovered or 

refunded in future rates. In the absence of rate regulation these amounts would be included in the determination of net income in 

the year the amounts are incurred. The effects of rate regulation on the Consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed in Note 6.
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2.5  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments consist primarily of Canadian Treasury Bills and Banker’s Acceptances 

(BAs).  Those with original maturities at date of purchase of three months or less are classified as cash equivalents whereas those 

with original maturities beyond three months and less than 12 months are classified as short-term investments. The short-term 

investments bear interest rates of 1.26% to 1.35% (2011 - 0.74% to 1.24%) per annum.  Cash and cash equivalents and short-term 

investments are measured at fair value. 

2.6  INVENTORY

Inventory is recorded at the lower of average cost and net realizable value.

2.7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, which comprises materials, labour, contracted services, other costs directly 

related to construction and an allocation of certain overhead costs.  Expenditures for additions and betterments are capitalized 

and normal expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations.  The cost of property, plant and equipment 

under construction is transferred to property, plant and equipment in service when construction is completed and facilities are 

commissioned, at which point amortization commences.

Contributions in aid of construction are funds received from customers and governments toward the incurred cost of property, 

plant and equipment or the fair value of assets contributed.  Contributions are recorded as a reduction to property, plant and 

equipment and the net property, plant and equipment is amortized.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in Other income and expense as incurred.

Nalcor, Oil and Gas and Bull Arm Fabrication

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over service lives ranging from four to 30 years.

Hydro

Construction in progress includes the costs incurred in engineering and construction of new generation, transmission and 

distribution facilities.  Interest is charged to construction in progress at rates equivalent to Hydro’s weighted average cost of debt.

 

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Generation Plant

 Hydroelectric  45 to 100 years

 Thermal 35 to 65 years

 Diesel 25 to 55 years

Transmission 

 Lines 30 to 65 years

 Terminal stations                 40 to 55 years

Distribution system 30 to 55 years

Hydroelectric generation plant includes the powerhouse, turbines, governors and generators, as well as water conveying and 

control structures, including dams, dikes, tailrace, penstock and intake structures.  Thermal generation plant is comprised of the 

powerhouse, turbines and generators, boilers, oil storage tanks, stacks and auxiliary systems. Diesel generation plant includes 

the buildings, engines, generators, switchgear, fuel storage and transfer systems, dikes and liners and cooling systems.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Transmission lines include the support structures, foundations and insulators associated with lines at voltages of 230, 138 and 

69 kilovolt (kV). Switching station assets are used to step up voltages of electricity from generating to transmission and to step 

down voltages for distribution.  

Distribution system assets include poles, transformers, insulators and conductors.

Other Assets

Other assets include telecontrol, computer software, buildings, vehicles, furniture, tools and equipment which are carried at 

costless accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives ranging from  

5 to 55 years. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.

Churchill Falls

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
   
Hydroelectric generation plant 45 to 100 years

Transmission and terminals 30 to 65 years

Service facilities and other 7 to 45 years

2.8  CAPITALIZED INTEREST

Interest is charged to construction in progress until the project is complete at rates equivalent to the weighted average cost of 

debt. Capitalized interest cannot exceed actual interest incurred.

2.9  IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Nalcor reviews the carrying value of its oil and gas properties and development projects at the end of each accounting period. 

Nalcor reviews the carrying value of its other property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss corresponding to the amount by which the 

carrying value exceeds fair value is recognized, if applicable.

2.10  PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS PROPERTIES

Nalcor employs the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas interests whereby all costs related to the acquisition, exploration 

for and development of petroleum and natural gas reserves are capitalized. Such costs include land acquisition costs, geological 

and geophysical costs, carrying charges of non-producing properties, drilling of productive and non-productive wells, the cost of 

petroleum and natural gas production equipment and administrative costs directly related to exploration and development activities.

Under the full cost method, capitalized costs, together with estimated future capital costs associated with proved reserves, are 

depleted and depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on estimated gross proved reserves at future prices and 

costs as determined by independent reservoir engineers.

Costs of acquiring and evaluating unproved properties and certain costs associated with major development projects are not 

subject to depletion until proved reserves are attributable to the property, production commences or impairment occurs. The 

carrying value of petroleum and natural gas properties is assessed annually or as circumstances dictate.  

Impairment losses are recognized when the carrying value exceeds the sum of:
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The amount of impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the sum of:

2.11  ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The fair value of the future expenditures required to settle legal obligations associated with the retirement of property, plant 

and equipment, is recognized to the extent that they are reasonably estimable. Asset retirement obligations are recorded at fair 

value, with a corresponding increase to property, plant and equipment. Accretion of asset retirement obligations is included in 

net income through Amortization and depletion. Differences between the recorded asset retirement obligation and the actual 

retirement costs incurred are recorded as a gain or loss in the settlement period.

2.12  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Employees participate in the Province’s Public Service Pension Plan, a multi-employer defined benefit plan. The employer’s 

contributions are expensed as incurred. 

Nalcor provides group life insurance and health care benefits on a cost-shared basis to retired employees, in addition to a 

severance payment upon retirement. The expected cost of providing these other employee future benefits is accounted for on 

an accrual basis and has been actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on service and management’s 

best estimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected health care costs. The excess of net cumulative 

actuarial gains and losses over 10% of the accrued benefit obligation is amortized over the expected average remaining service 

life of the employee group.

2.13  REVENUE RECOGNITION

Electricity Sales

Revenue is recognized on the accrual basis, as power deliveries are made, and includes an estimate of the value of electricity 

consumed by customers in the year, but billed subsequent to year end.  Sales within the province are primarily at rates approved 

by the PUB, whereas export sales and sales to certain major industrial customers are either at rates under the terms of the 

applicable contracts, or at market rates.

A power contract with Hydro-Quebec dated May 12, 1969 (the Power Contract) provides for the sale of a significant amount of 

the energy from Churchill Falls until 2041.  The Power Contract has a 40-year term to 2016 which then renews for a further term 

of 25 years.  The rate is predetermined in the Power Contract and decreases from the existing rate of 2.5426 mills per kWh to 

2.0 mills per kWh upon renewal in 2016.

Churchill Falls receives revenues from Hydro-Quebec under a guaranteed winter availability contract (GWAC) through 2041. The 

GWAC provides for the sale of 682 MW of guaranteed seasonal availability to Hydro-Quebec during the months of November 

through March in each of the remaining years of the Power Contract.

The value of differences between energy delivered and the Annual Energy Base (AEB), as defined in the Power Contract, is tracked 

over a four-year period and then either recovered from or refunded to Hydro-Quebec over the subsequent four-year period, unless 

the balance is less than $1.0 million in which case it is recovered or refunded immediately.  These long-term receivables or long-

term payables are subject to interest at 7% per annum (2011 - 7%). 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

383



2012 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REPORT

Oil Sales

Revenue from the sale of crude oil is recognized under the accrual method when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 

have passed and collection is reasonably assured.  The transfer of risks and rewards is considered to have occurred when title to 

the product passes to the customer.

Revenue from properties in which Oil and Gas has an interest with other producers is recognized on the basis of the net working 

interest using the entitlement method.  Under this method, crude oil produced and sold below or above the Oil and Gas’ net 

working interest results in an underlift or overlift position.  Underlift or overlift positions are measured at market value and 

recorded as an asset or liability respectively.

Lease Revenue

revenue can be reliably estimated.

2.14  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Foreign currency transactions are translated into their Canadian dollar equivalent as follows: 

(a) At the transaction date, each asset, liability, revenue or expense is translated using exchange rates in effect at that date. 

(b) At the date of settlement and at each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities are adjusted to reflect exchange 

rates in effect at that date.  Any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income, except gains or losses on purchases of fuel which 

are included in the cost of fuel inventory.

2.15  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the balance sheet when Nalcor becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  Subsequent measurement is based on classification.  Nalcor 

Nalcor has classified its financial instruments as follows:

 Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading

 Short-term investments Available for sale

 Accounts receivable Loans and receivables

 Derivatives Held for trading

 Sinking funds - investments in same Hydro issue Held to maturity

 Sinking funds - other investments Available for sale

 Reserve fund Available for sale

 Long-term receivables Loans and receivables

 Short-term borrowings Other liabilities

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other liabilities

 Promissory notes Other liabilities

 Long-term debt Other liabilities

 Long-term payables Other liabilities
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Each of these financial instruments is measured at amortized cost, except for cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, 

sinking funds – other investments, reserve fund, short-term borrowings, derivative assets and derivative liabilities which are 

measured at fair value.

Transaction costs related to financial assets and financial liabilities are included as part of the cost of the instrument, with the 

exception of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments which are expensed as incurred through interest and finance 

charges, based upon the pricing obtained during the quotation process.  Discounts and premiums on financial instruments are 

amortized to income over the life of the instrument. 

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Derivative instruments are utilized by Nalcor to manage market risk. Nalcor’s policy is not to utilize derivative instruments for 

speculative purposes. Nalcor may choose to designate derivative instruments as hedges and apply hedge accounting if there 

is a high degree of correlation between price movements in the derivative instruments and the hedged items. Nalcor formally 

documents all hedges and the risk management objectives at the inception of the hedge. Derivative instruments that have been 

designated and qualify for hedge accounting are classified as either cash flow or fair value hedges. Nalcor had no derivatives 

designated as hedges at December 31, 2012 (2011 - nil).

2.16  FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES – INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) 

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) amended the introduction to Part 1 of the Canadian Institute of Chartered 

Accounts (CICA) Handbook – Accounting to allow qualifying entities with rate-regulated activities to defer the adoption of IFRS to 

January 1, 2015.  Nalcor is a qualifying entity and chose to use the deferral option for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Although IFRS and Canadian GAAP are based on a similar conceptual framework, there are a number of differences in recognition, 

measurement and disclosure. The areas with the highest potential impact on Nalcor are property, plant and equipment, regulatory 

assets and liabilities and petroleum and natural gas properties.

IFRS standards in effect at the time of conversion and the accounting elections made. 

3.  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

During 2012, Hydro adopted new accounting policies as approved by the PUB in Order No P.U. 13( 2012). These policy changes 

were applied retroactive to January 1, 2011. The policy changes are as follows:

Capitalization of property, plant and equipment

Previously, Hydro capitalized certain general overhead costs and training costs and included the costs of asset overhauls and 

major inspections as an operating expense. Hydro’s revised policy is to expense general overheads and training costs as incurred 

and to capitalize costs associated with asset overhauls and major inspections. These changes resulted in a decrease in net income 

of $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Employee future benefits

Previously, Hydro accounted for employee future benefits under the corridor method whereby the excess of gains and losses over 10% 

of the accrued benefit obligation is amortized to income over the expected average remaining service life of the employee group.  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Hydro’s revised policy is to defer the amortization of actuarial gains and losses recognized in employee future benefits  

expense through regulatory adjustments. This change resulted in an increase in net income of $1.2 million for the year ended 

December 31, 2011.

Amortization of property, plant and equipment

Previously, Hydro amortized hydroelectric generating assets and transmission assets using the sinking fund method. Hydro’s new 

policy is to calculate amortization using the straight-line methodology. As part of the methodology change, Hydro also changed 

its estimate of service lives effective January 1, 2011. In the absence of regulatory approval, this change would have been applied 

retroactively resulting in a decrease in retained earnings as at January 1, 2011 of $210.7 million. Pursuant to Order No. P.U. 13 

(2012), the PUB approved the use of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment under Canadian GAAP as deemed cost 

at January 1, 2011. As the deemed cost of Hydro’s regulated property, plant and equipment is recoverable through future rates, 

no adjustment to opening retained earnings is necessary. These changes resulted in an increase in net income of $2.2 million for 

the year ended December 31, 2011.

4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
   Contributions
    In Aid of   Accumulated  Net Book
  Cost Construction Amortization Value 

(millions of dollars)      2012

Electric  generation 1,501.0 2.4  371.7 1,126.9

Electric  transmission and distribution 672.8 18.5  92.9 561.4

Development projects 618.0 -   -  618.0

Other 202.5 23.1   50.7 128.7

  2,994.3  44.0  515.3 2,435.0 

(millions of dollars)        2011

Electric  generation 1,468.7   2.4  341.2 1,125.1

Electric  transmission and distribution 615.3  7.6  76.0 531.7

Development projects 337.5       337.5

Other 173.6  15.5  42.9 115.2

  2,595.1  25.5  460.1  2,109.5

As at December 31, 2012 the cost of assets under construction and therefore excluded from costs subject to amortization was 

$661.2 million (2011 - $384.3 million).

Included in Development projects is $609.3 million related to the Lower Churchill Project (2011 - $329 million). Phase 1 of the 

Project, which was sanctioned in December 2012, will result in the development of the 824 MW Muskrat Falls site, with power 

being transmitted over a new transmission line (the Labrador-Island Transmission Link) to be constructed from Labrador across 

the Strait of Belle Isle to the Avalon Peninsula on the island of Newfoundland, and the development of a new transmission 

system (the Maritime Transmission Link) from Newfoundland to Nova Scotia, for the provision of power to Emera in Nova Scotia 

and the provision of market access to Nalcor. Nalcor will also obtain transmission access in Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and 

Maine from Emera. Nalcor will own and finance 100% of Muskrat Falls and the Labrador Transmission Assets. Nalcor and Emera, 

through a partnership in which Nalcor has the majority interest, will finance the Labrador-Island Transmission Link. The Maritime 

Transmission Link will be 100% owned and financed by Emera. 
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5.  PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS PROPERTIES
 
(millions of dollars)  2012 2011 

Petroleum and natural gas properties 434.0 344.0

Less: accumulated depletion 58.0 39.8

   376.0 304.2

Internal costs directly related to acquisition, exploration and development activities capitalized in 2012 were $0.1 million  

(2011 - $0.5 million).

As at December 31, 2012, $187.1 million (2011 - $139.1 million) of accumulated costs of petroleum and natural gas properties were 

not subject to depletion and depreciation.

Oil and Gas properties include Nalcor’s acquisition costs and proportionate share of exploration and development costs. Nalcor 

has a 4.9% working interest in the Hebron oil field, a 5.0% working interest in the White Rose Growth Project, and a 10% working 

interest in the Hibernia Southern Extension. Nalcor also has an average working interest of 99% in two onshore exploration 

permits in Parson’s Pond on the Great Northern Peninsula. A third exploration permit, in which Nalcor had a 62% interest,  

has expired.

On February 17, 2011, Oil and Gas announced that it will not drill the third of a three well drilling program related to its exploration 

licenses in Parson’s Pond on the West Coast of Newfoundland. The two drilled exploration wells are currently in a suspended 

state. The costs capitalized for Parson’s Pond were included in the depletion base in December 2011.

6.  REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
     Remaining Recovery

     Settlement Period 
(millions of dollars)  2012  2011  (years) 

Regulatory assets      

 Foreign exchange losses 62.6   64.7   29.0

 Deferred major extraordinary repairs  -    0.6  

 Deferred energy conservation costs 2.4  1.1    n/a

Total regulatory assets 65.0  66.4  

 Less current portion 2.2  2.8  

   62.8  63.6  

      

Regulatory liabilities      

 Rate stabilization plan (RSP) 201.7  170.3   n/a

 Deferred purchased power savings 0.5  0.6  14.5

Total regulatory liabilities 202.2  170.9  

 Less current portion 169.0  137.6  

   33.2  33.3  
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6.1  REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS RECORDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 

(millions of dollars)   2012  2011   

 RSP recovery   60.4  25.4

 Rural rate adjustment   7.0  4.4

 RSP fuel deferral   (49.3) (20.9)

 RSP interest   13.2  12.2

 Amortization of deferred foreign exchange losses   2.1  2.1

 Deferred foreign exchange (losses) gains on fuel   (0.4) 0.2

 Employee future benefit actuarial losses    (2.3) (1.2)

 Amortization of major extraordinary repairs   0.6  1.7

 Deferred energy conservation   (1.4) (0.5)

 Insurance proceeds   0.2  0.8

 Deferred purchased power savings   (0.1 ) (0.1)

     30.0   24.1

Nalcor’s subsidiary, Hydro, has operations that are regulated by the PUB.

Regulatory assets represent future revenues associated with certain costs, incurred in current or prior periods that are expected to 

be recovered from customers in future periods through the rate-setting process.  Regulatory liabilities represent future reductions 

or limitations of increases in revenues associated with amounts that are expected to be refunded to customers as a result of the 

rate-setting process. Amounts deferred as regulatory assets and liabilities are subject to PUB approval. The risks and uncertainties 

related to regulatory assets and liabilities are subject to periodic assessment. When Hydro considers that the value of these 

regulatory assets or liabilities is no longer likely to be recovered or repaid through future rate adjustments, the carrying amount is 

reflected in operations. The following is a description of each of the circumstances in which rate regulation affects the accounting 

for a transaction or event.  

6.2  RATE STABILIZATION PLAN  

On January 1, 1986, Hydro, having received the approval of the PUB, implemented a rate stabilization plan (RSP) which primarily 

provides for the deferral of fuel expense variances resulting from changes in fuel prices, levels of precipitation and load.  

Adjustments required in retail rates to cover the amortization of the balance in the plan are implemented on July 1 of each year.  

Similar adjustments required in industrial rates are implemented on January 1 of each year.

Balances accumulating in the RSP, including financing charges, are to be recovered or refunded in the following year, with the 

exception of hydraulic variation, which will be recovered or refunded at a rate of 25% of the outstanding balance at year end.  

Additionally, a fuel rider is calculated annually based on the forecast fuel price and is added to or subtracted from the rates that 

would otherwise be in effect. A portion of the RSP balance totaling approximately $135.0 million (2011 - $102.0 million) has been 

set aside by the PUB and will be subject to a future regulatory ruling on the allocation between the industrial customers and 

retail customers. This balance is mainly due to fuel savings at the Holyrood Thermal Generating Station (HTGS) as a result of the 

shutdown of a portion of the pulp and paper industry in the Province since 2007. 

Hydro recognizes the RSP balances as a regulatory asset or liability based on the expectation that rates will be adjusted annually 

to provide for the collection from, or refund to, customers in future periods. In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP 
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would require that the cost of fuel be recognized as an operating expense in the period in which it was consumed. In 2012,  

$49.3 million was deferred (2011 - $20.9 million) in the RSP and $60.4 million (2011 - $25.4 million) was recovered through rates 

and included in energy sales.

Hydro’s rural rates on the Island Interconnected and Isolated systems are primarily based upon retail rates. Therefore, when a 

rate adjustment for retail rates has been approved by the PUB, Hydro’s rural customers receive the same rate change. In 2012, 

the rural rate adjustment reduced income and increased the RSP liability by $7.0 million (2011 - $4.4 million). In the absence of 

rate regulation, the rate adjustment would have been recorded in income.

Hydro is required to charge or pay interest on balances accumulating in the RSP at a rate equal to Hydro’s weighted average cost 

of capital. As a result, Hydro recognized interest expense of $13.2 million in 2012 (2011 - $12.2 million). 

6.3  DEFERRED FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES

Hydro incurred foreign exchange losses related to the issuance of Swiss Franc and Japanese Yen denominated debt in 1975 and 

1985, respectively, which were recognized when the debt was repaid in 1997. The PUB has accepted the inclusion of realized 

foreign exchange losses related to long-term debt in rates charged to customers in future periods. Any such loss, net of any gain, 

is deferred to the time of the next rate hearing for inclusion in the new rates to be set at that time. Accordingly, these losses are 

recognized as a regulatory asset. In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP would require that Hydro include the losses in 

operating costs, in each year that the related debt was outstanding, to reflect the exchange rates in effect on each reporting date.

Commencing in 2002, the PUB ordered Hydro’s deferred realized foreign exchange losses be amortized over a forty year period.  

This amortization, of $2.1 million annually, is included in regulatory adjustments.

6.4  DEFERRED MAJOR EXTRAORDINARY REPAIRS

In its report dated April 13, 1992, the PUB recommended that Hydro adopt a policy of deferring and amortizing the costs 

of major extraordinary repairs in excess of $0.5 million, subject to PUB approval on a case-by-case basis. In 2005, Hydro 

started an asbestos abatement program at the HTGS. This program was carried out over a three year period. Pursuant to Order  

No. P.U. 2 (2005), the PUB approved the deferral and amortization of these costs as a major extraordinary repair. Accordingly, 

the costs incurred in each year of the program were recognized as a regulatory asset to be amortized over the subsequent  

five-year period. In 2006, Hydro incurred $2.3 million in expenses to repair a boiler tube failure at the HTGS. Pursuant to Order  

No. P.U. 44 (2006), the PUB approved the deferral and amortization of these costs as a major extraordinary repair.  Accordingly, 

these costs are being amortized over a five-year period. In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP would require that 

Hydro expense the cost of the asbestos abatement program and the boiler tube repairs in the year incurred. In 2012, $0.6 million 

(2011 - $1.7 million) of amortization was recognized in operating costs.

6.5  DEFERRED ENERGY CONSERVATION COSTS

Pursuant to Order No. P.U. 14 (2009), Hydro received approval to defer costs associated with an electrical conservation program 

for residential, industrial, and commercial sectors.  Accordingly, these costs have been recognized as a regulatory asset. In the 

absence of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP would require that Hydro include this program as operating costs in the year incurred.  

In 2012, $1.4 million (2011 - $0.5 million) was deferred.
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6.6  DEFERRED PURCHASED POWER SAVINGS

In 1997, Hydro interconnected communities in the area of L’Anse au Clair to Red Bay to the Hydro system. In its report dated July 

12, 1996, the PUB recommended that Hydro defer and amortize the benefits of a reduced initial purchased power rate over a 

30-year period. The remaining unamortized savings of $0.5 million (2011 - $0.6 million) are recognized as a regulatory liability. In 

the absence of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP would require that Hydro include the actual cost of purchased power in operating 

costs in the year incurred.

6.7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Pursuant to Order No P.U. 13 (2012), the PUB approved the use of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment under 

Canadian GAAP as the deemed cost at January 1, 2011.

During 2010, Hydro engaged an independent consultant to conduct an amortization study.  The scope of this study included a 

review of Hydro’s amortization methods as well as a statistical analysis of service life estimates and calculation of appropriate 

amortization rates and annual and accrued amortization balances as at December 31, 2009.  Based on the results of this study 

and PUB approval, amortization previously calculated using the ‘sinking fund’ method under Canadian GAAP is now calculated on 

a straight-line basis. In addition, the service lives for certain assets have also been revised. 

The PUB permits major inspections to be included in the cost of capital and amortized over the average expected period of the 

next major inspection. In 2012, $6.8 million (2011 - $0.9 million) was recognized as property, plant and equipment. In the absence 

of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP would require that Hydro include the major inspections as operating costs in the year incurred.

6.8  FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND LOSSES

Hydro purchases a significant amount of fuel in US dollars. The RSP allows Hydro to defer variances in fuel prices (including  

foreign exchange fluctuations). During 2012, Hydro deferred foreign exchange losses on fuel purchases of $0.4 million  

(2011 - $0.2 million gain). In the absence of rate regulation, Canadian GAAP would require that Hydro include gains and losses  

on foreign currencies in net finance expenses in the period incurred.

6.9  INSURANCE PROCEEDS

Pursuant to Order No. P.U. 13 (2012), Hydro records net insurance proceeds in excess of $50,000 against the capital costs of the 

related assets. In 2012, Hydro recorded net insurance proceeds of $0.2 million (2011- $0.8 million) against costs of the related 

assets.

6.10  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Pursuant to Order No. P.U. 13 (2012), Hydro defers the amortization of actuarial gains and losses. During 2012, Hydro deferred 

actuarial gains and losses of $2.3 million (2011 - $1.2 million).

7.  OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 

(millions of dollars)   2012  2011 

Long term receivables  (a)  0.8  1.6

Sinking funds  (b)  302.8  247.0

Reserve fund  (c)  50.9  45.4

    354.5  294.0
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(a) The balance of $0.8 million (2011 - $1.6 million) includes the non-current portion of receivables associated with customer 

time payment plans and the long-term portion of employee purchase programs of $0.2 million (2011 - $0.2 million). During 

2012, refundable deposits associated with applications for transmission service into Nova Scotia and New Brunswick were 

settled (2011 - $1.4 million). During 2011, Hydro-Quebec refunded two deposits totaling $24.1 million associated with 

applications for transmission service through Quebec. The remaining balance of $0.6 million (2011 - nil) relates to differences 

between the Annual Energy Base (AEB) in the Power Contract and energy delivered accumulating over the four-year period 

from September 2012 to August 2016.

(b)  As at December 31, 2012, sinking funds include $263.3 million (2011 - $247.0) related to repayment of Hydro’s long-term debt 

and $39.5 million (2011 - nil) related to funding of Nalcor’s long-term payable under the UCRA. 

 Sinking fund investments consist of bonds, debentures, promissory notes and coupons issued by, or guaranteed by, the 

Government of Canada, provincial governments or Schedule 1 banks, and have maturity dates ranging from 2013 to 2041.  

 

 Hydro debentures, which are intended to be held to maturity, are deducted from long-term debt while all other sinking 

fund investments are shown separately on the balance sheet as assets.  Annual contributions to the various sinking funds 

are in accordance with bond indenture terms, and are structured to ensure the availability of adequate funds at the time of 

expected bond redemption. Effective yields range from 1.38% to 9.86% (2011 - 3.12% to 9.86%). 

 Nalcor sinking funds are held to fund the annual payments to the Innu Nation as required under the Upper Churchill Redress 

Agreement (UCRA). 

(millions of dollars)  2012   2011 

Sinking funds at beginning of year  247.0 208.2

Contributions 48.1  8.2

Earnings 12.6  11.0

Redemptions (2.0) 

Valuation adjustment (2.9) 19.6

Sinking funds at end of year 302.8 247.0

 Sinking fund instalments due for the next five years are as follows:

(millions of dollars) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Sinking fund instalments  8.2  8.2  8.2  8.2  6.7

(c)  Pursuant to the terms of the 1999 shareholders’ agreement, in 2007, Churchill Falls commenced the creation of a  

$75.0 million segregated reserve fund to contribute towards the funding of capital expenditures related to Churchill Falls’ 

existing facilities and their replacement.  A summary of Nalcor’s 65.8% share of the reserve fund is as follows:

(millions of dollars)  2012   2011 

Opening balance 45.4 39.3

Contribution 5.3  5.3

Net interest 0.3  0.1

Mark to market adjustment (0.1 ) 0.7

Fair value of reserve fund 50.9 45.4
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8.  JOINT VENTURE

The following amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements represent Nalcor’s proportionate share of Churchill Falls’ 

assets and liabilities at December 31 and its proportionate interest in Churchill Falls’ operations for the year then ended.

(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Current assets 39.9 41.8

Long term assets  383.2  394.8

Current liabilities  20.5  19.0

Long term liabilities 15.6 16.2

Revenues  73.5  64.2

Expenses 48.6 43.1

Net income 24.9 21.1

Cash provided by (used in)       

 Operating activities 33.1  32.3

 Financing activities (2.5) 0.9

 Investing activities (23.8) (32.6)

Income tax expense in the amount of $0.1 million (2011 - $0.2 million) related to a jointly controlled subsidiary, Twin Falls, has 

been included in expenses.

9.  DEFERRED CREDITS

Deferred credits consist of funding from the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador, deferred revenue from Emera Inc., 

deferred lease revenue and oil production.  

Hydro has received funding from the Province for wind feasibility studies in Labrador. Oil and Gas has received funding from the 

Province for oil and gas exploration initiatives. Funding related to studies and programs are amortized to income directly against 

the related expenditures as the costs are incured.

In July 2012, Nalcor entered into agreements with Emera Inc. related to the Muskrat Falls project.  Under these agreements, Emera 

is constructing the Maritime Link in exchange for the provision of power by Nalcor for a 35-year period. Nalcor has recorded 

deferred revenue of $28.0 million which equals the construction costs to date incurred by Emera. Nalcor controls the Maritime Link 

asset and as such has recorded the costs as a component of property, plant and equipment under construction.

Other includes deferred lease revenue and over-lift on oil production. The following is a schedule of the deferred credits for  

the year:
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   Hydro  Oil and Gas
   Wind  Program  Deferred
(millions of dollars) Credits Funding Energy Sales Other Total

Balance at January 1, 2011     2.2     0.3   2.5

Additions 3.5  8.0     0.6   12.1

Amortization   (3.3)      (3.3)

Balance at December 31, 2011 3.5  6.9     0.9   11.3

Additions    2.3   28.0  0.5   30.8

Amortization (1.6) (4.4)    (0.9) (6.9)

Balance at December 31, 2012 1.9 4.8 28.0  0.5   35.2

Less: current portion 1.9 4.8     0.5  7.2

        28.0     28.0

10.  DEBT

10.1  SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Nalcor maintains a $100.0 million unsecured demand operating credit facility with its banker. Borrowings in Canadian dollars may 

take the form of Prime Rate Advances, BAs and Letters of Credit. Borrowings in USD may take the form of Base Rate Advances, 

LIBOR Advances and Letters of Credit. The facility also provides coverage for overdrafts on Nalcor’s bank accounts, with interest 

calculated at the Prime Rate. At year end, the drawings on the facility were four irrevocable letters of credit. One was issued to 

the Department of Fisheries and Oceans (DFO), two were issued to the Newfoundland Labrador Offshore Petroleum Board, and 

one was issued to Newfoundland Transshipment. The letter of credit issued to DFO in the amount of $0.3 million was in connection 

with the operation of hydroelectric assets on the Exploits River. The remaining letters of credit totaled $4.8 million and relate to 

Oil and Gas to ensure compliance with regulations relating to petroleum and natural gas exploration and production activities.

Hydro maintains a $50.0 million Canadian or US equivalent unsecured demand operating credit facility with its banker and at 

year end there were no amounts drawn on the facility (2011 - nil). Advances may take the form of a Prime Rate Advance or the 

issuance of a BA with interest calculated at the Prime Rate or prevailing Government BA fee. The facility also provides coverage 

for overdrafts on Hydro’s bank accounts, with interest calculated at the Prime Rate. At year end, Hydro had 24 letters of credit 

outstanding, reducing the availability of the credit facility by $18.9 million (2011 - $18.9 million).

Churchill Falls maintains a $10.0 million Canadian or US equivalent unsecured demand operating credit facility with its banker and 

at year end there were no amounts drawn on the facility (2011 - nil). Advances may take the form of a Prime Rate Advance or 

the issuance of a BA with interest calculated at the Prime Rate or prevailing Government BA fee. Churchill Falls has issued three 

irrevocable letters of credit, totaling $2.0 million, to ensure satisfactory management of its waste management and compliance 

with a certificate of approval for the transportation of special hazardous wastes granted by the Department of Environment and 

Conservation.

Oil and Gas maintains a $5.0 million unsecured credit facility. As at December 31, 2012, $3.7 million was drawn on the  

facility (2011 - nil).

Short-term borrowings consist of promissory notes in Hydro totalling $52.0 million and bankers’ acceptances in Nalcor totalling 

$73.0 million. There were no short-term borrowings at December 31, 2011.
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10.2  LONG-TERM DEBT

Details of long-term debt are as follows:

   Face  Coupon  Year of  Year of
   Value Rate % Issue Maturity     

(millions of dollars)     2012 2011 

V  * 125.0 10.50 1989 2014 124.8 124.7

X     * 150.0 10.25 1992 2017 149.4 149.4

Y     * 300.0 8.40 1996 2026 293.8 293.5

AB * 300.0 6.65 2001 2031 306.3  306.5

AD * 125.0 5.70 2003 2033 123.7  123.6

AE  225.0 4.30 2006 2016 224.2 224.0

Total debentures 1,225.0    1,222.2 1,221.7

Less: sinking fund investments 
 in own debentures     88.1  82.0

       1,134.1  1,139.7

Less: payments due within one year     8.2 8.2

       1,125.9 1,131.5

* Sinking funds have been established for these issues.

Promissory notes, debentures and long-term loans are unsecured and unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest 

and, where applicable, sinking fund payments, by the Province.  The Province charges Hydro a guarantee fee of 25 basis points 

annually on the total debt (net of sinking funds) with a remaining term to maturity less than ten years and 50 basis points 

annually on total debt (net of sinking funds) with a remaining term to maturity greater than ten years. The fee for 2012 was  

$3.7 million (2011 - $3.9 million).

Required repayments of long-term debt over the next five years will be as follows:

(millions of dollars) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Long term debt repayment   125.0    225.0  150.0

11.  ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Nalcor has recognized liabilities associated with the retirement of portions of the HTGS, disposal of polychlorinated biphenyls 

(PCB) and retirement obligations associated with Nalcor’s net interest in petroleum and natural gas properties. The reconciliation 

of the beginning and ending carrying amount of asset retirement obligations is as follows:

(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Obligations at beginning of year  24.8  14.8

Liabilities incurred  1.4  3.7

Accretion  1.0  0.7

Revisions  4.3  5.6

Settlements  (0.1)  

Obligations at end of year  31.4  24.8

Less current portion:  1.4  

   30.0 24.8
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The total undiscounted estimated cash flows required to settle the HTGS obligations at December 31, 2012 are $32.1 million 

(2011 - $27.0 million). Payments to settle the liability are expected to occur between 2020 and 2024. The fair value of the asset 

retirement obligations was determined using the present value of future cash flows discounted at a credit adjusted risk free rate 

of 2.8% (2011 - 2.9%).

The total undiscounted estimated cash flows required to settle the PCB obligations at December 31, 2012 are $3.6 million  

(2011 - $3.6 million). Payments to settle the liability are expected to occur between 2013 and 2025. The fair value of the asset 

retirement obligations was determined using the present value of future cash flows discounted at credit adjusted risk free rates 

ranging between 3.1% and 5.5% (2011 - 3.1% and 5.6%). 

Oil and Gas asset retirement obligations result from net ownership interests in petroleum and natural gas properties and related 

well sites.  The total undiscounted estimated cash flows required to settle the obligations at December 31, 2012 is $10.7 million 

(2011 - $8.9 million). Payments to settle the liability are expected to occur between 2020 and 2030. The fair value of the asset 

retirement obligations was determined using the present value of future cash flows discounted at credit adjusted risk free rates 

ranging between 4.7% and 6.3% (2011 - 5.0% to 6.2%).

A significant number of Nalcor’s assets include generation plants, transmission assets and distribution systems. These assets 

can continue to run indefinitely with ongoing maintenance activities. As it is expected that Nalcor’s assets will be used for an 

indefinite period, no removal date can be determined and consequently, a reasonable estimate of the fair value of any related 

asset retirement obligation cannot be determined at this time. If it becomes possible to estimate the fair value of the cost of 

removing assets that Nalcor is legally required to remove, an asset retirement obligation for those assets will be recognized at 

that time.

12.  LONG-TERM PAYABLES

(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Balance at beginning of year 45.1  4.6

Additions and revisions 43.2 40.5

Accretion 2.2 

Balance at end of year 90.5 45.1

Less: current portion  (8.1 ) (2.4)

   82.4 42.7

The long-term payables consist of a payable to the Innu Nation under the UCRA, a payable to the Innu Nation under the Impact 

and Benefits Agreement (IBA), a payable to Hydro-Quebec related to the AEB and a penalty payment regarding the Hebron Oil 

and Gas project. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Under the UCRA, Nalcor is required to pay to the Innu Nation, $2.0 million annually escalated by 2.5% annually until 2041. 

Currently, $2.1 million (2011 - $2.0 million) of the amount is current and is recorded in trade and other payables. Nalcor has 

sinking funds in the amount of $40.0 million to fund these future obligations.

Under the IBA, Nalcor is required to make annual payments to the Innu Nation commencing on sanction of the Muskrat Falls 

Project. The Muskrat Falls Project was sanctioned in December 2012 and the first IBA payment was made at that time. The IBA 

requires annual payments of $5.0 million escalated by the annual consumer price index from sanction until first commercial 

power. The present value of the payments using a discount rate of 3.7% is $40.4 million (2011 - nil). The current portion of the 

payable at December 31, 2012 is $5.0 million. 

In September 2012, the joint venture partners in the Hebron project executed the Benefits Agreement Drilling Equipment Set 

(DES) Settlement Agreement. This Agreement allowed the Hebron partners to adjust the Hebron Benefits Agreement such that 

the Hebron Project DES could be constructed at a geographic location outside of Newfoundland and Labrador in exchange for 

a one-time payment to the Province. The total payment was agreed to be $150.0 million payable on June 30, 2016. Nalcor’s 

proportionate 4.9% share of the payment will be $7.3 million. Oil and Gas has recognized the present value of its payable of  

$6.4 million determined using a discount rate of 3.4%.

The long-term payable to Hydro-Quebec as at December 31, 2012 is the accumulation of differences between energy delivered 

and the AEB energy base billed during the four-year period from September 1, 2008 to August 31, 2012. Monthly repayments 

commenced in September 2012 and will terminate on August 31, 2016. The current portion of $1.0 million (2011 - $0.4 million) is 

included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The long-term portion is $2.6 million (2011 - $4.8 million).

13.  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

13.1  PENSION PLAN

Employees participate in the Province’s Public Service Pension Plan, a multi-employer defined benefit plan. The employer’s 

contributions of $6.8 million (2011 - $6.4 million) are expensed as incurred.

13.2  OTHER BENEFITS  

Nalcor provides group life insurance and health care benefits on a cost shared basis to retired employees, and in certain cases, 

their surviving spouses, in addition to a severance payment upon retirement. In 2012, cash payments to beneficiaries for its 

unfunded other employee future benefits was $3.0 million (2011 - $2.6 million). An actuarial valuation was performed at 

December 31, 2012.
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(millions of dollars)  2012  2011 

Accrued benefit obligation       

 Balance at beginning of year 113.1  87.5

 Current service cost 4.6 3.3

 Interest cost 5.0 5.1

 Actuarial (gain) loss  (1.0) 21.0

 Regulatory adjustments (2.3) (1.2)

 Benefits paid (3.0) (2.6)

Balance at end of year 116.4 113.1

Plan deficit  116.4 113.1

Unamortized actuarial loss  (42.6) (46.5)

Unamortized past service cost (0.2) (0.2)

Accrued benefit liability at end of year 73.6 66.4

 

(millions of dollars)  2012  2011

Component of benefit cost        

 Current service cost 4.6 3.3

 Interest cost 5.0 5.1

 Actuarial (gain) loss  (1.0) 21.0

   8.6 29.4

Difference between actuarial gain or loss and amount recognized 3.9 (19.6)

Benefit expense 12.5 9.8

 

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued benefit obligations and benefit expense are as follows:

 
   2012 2011 

Discount rate  benefit cost 4.55% 5.75%

Discount rate  accrued benefit obligation 4.00% 4.55%

Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.50%

Assumed healthcare trend rates:

     

   2012 2011 

Initial health care expense trend rate 6.00% 7.50%

Cost trend decline to  4.50%  5.00%

Year that rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at 2020 2016

 

A 1% change in assumed health care trend rates would have had the following effects:    

        

Increase 2012 2011 

Current service and interest cost 2.3 1.7

Accrued benefit obligation 23.1 23.1

Decrease 2012 2011 

Current service and interest cost (1.7) (1.3)

Accrued benefit obligation (17.5) (17.6)
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14.  SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
 

14.1  SHARE CAPITAL
(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Common shares of par value $1 each    

 Authorized: unlimited    

  Issued and outstanding 122,500,000 122.5 122.5

14.2  CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Total contributed capital 435.8 390.5

On February 3, 2010, the Province established the Churchill Falls (Labrador) Corporation Trust (the Trust) with Churchill Falls as 

the beneficiary. The purpose of this trust is to fund the external costs and expenses incurred in relation to the motion filed by 

Churchill Falls seeking a modification to the pricing terms of the Power Contract. During 2012, the Province contributed capital in 

the amount of $45.0 million (2011 - $16.0 million) and the Trust contributed $0.3 million (2011 - $0.4 million). 

14.3  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(millions of dollars)  2012 2011 

Balance at beginning of year  46.4 27.3

 Other comprehensive (loss) income  (2.8) 19.1

Balance at end of year  43.6 46.4 

15.  REVENUE

(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Electricity sales 627.5 598.5

GWAC revenue 16.0 13.0

Oil sales 68.7 90.1

Royalties (1.8) (1.6)

Total energy sales 710.4 700.0

    

Lease revenue 5.2 4.3

Government funding 4.4 3.7

Preferred dividends 3.4 3.3

Other  2.7 2.8

Total other revenue 15.7 14.1
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16.  OPERATING COSTS

(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Salaries and benefits  114.8 107.7

Maintenance and materials 36.8 37.5

Transmission rental 19.7 18.7

Professional services 15.7 12.9

Oil and gas production costs 10.4 9.0

Other operating costs  9.5 14.3

Total  206.9 200.1

17.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Nalcor’s principal business requires ongoing access to capital in order to maintain assets to ensure the continued delivery of safe 

and reliable service to its customers. Therefore, Nalcor’s primary objective when managing capital is to ensure ready access to 

capital at a reasonable cost, to minimize its cost of capital within the confines of established risk parameters, and to safeguard 

Nalcor’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

The capital managed by Nalcor is comprised of debt (long-term debentures, promissory notes, bank credit facilities and bank 

indebtedness) and equity (share capital, contributed capital, accumulated other comprehensive income and retained earnings).

A summary of the capital structure is outlined below:

 
(millions of dollars) 2012  2011   

Debt        

Long term debt 1,125.9    1,131.5  

Short term borrowings 125.0    

Current portion of long term debt 8.2  8.2  

Sinking funds (263.3)  (247.0) 

   995.8  38.9% 892.7 38.4%

Equity        

Share capital 122.5  122.5  

Contributed capital 435.8  390.5  

Accumulated other comprehensive income 43.6  46.4  

Retained earnings 963.0  870.3  

   1,564.9  61.1% 1,429.7 61.6%

Total debt and equity 2,560.7 100.0% 2,322.4 100.0%

Nalcor’s unsecured demand operating facility has covenants restricting the issuance of debt such that the unconsolidated debt to 

total capitalization ratio cannot exceed 70%. The covenants further stipulate that the debt service coverage ratio should at all times 

be greater than 1.5 to 1.0 on an unconsolidated basis. As at December 31, 2012, Nalcor was in compliance with these covenants. 

17.1  HYDRO

Hydro’s unsecured demand operating facility has covenants restricting the issuance of debt such that the debt to total capitalization 

ratio cannot exceed 70%. The covenants further stipulate that the debt service coverage ratio should at all times be greater than 

1.5 to 1.0. As at December 31, 2012, Hydro was in compliance with these covenants. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Hydro’s approach to capital management encompasses various factors including monitoring the percentage of floating rate debt 

in the total debt portfolio, the weighted average term to maturity of its overall debt portfolio, its percentage of debt to debt plus 

equity and its interest coverage. 

For the regulated portion of Hydro’s operations a capital structure comprised of 75% debt and 25% equity is maintained, a ratio 

which management believes to be optimal with respect to its cost of capital. This capital structure is maintained by a combination 

of dividend policy, contributed equity and debt issuance.  The issuance of any new debt with a term greater than one year requires 

prior approval of the PUB.

Legislation stipulates that the total of the short-term loans issued by Hydro and outstanding at any time shall not exceed a limit 

as fixed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council. Short-term loans are those loans issued with a term not exceeding two years. 

The current limit is set at $300.0 million. There was $52.0 million outstanding as at December 31, 2012 (2011 - nil).  Issuance of 

long-term and short-term debt by Hydro is further restricted by Bill C-24, an amendment to the Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro 

Act of 1975. The Bill effectively limits Hydro’s total borrowings, which includes both long and short-term debt, to $1.6 billion at 

any point in time. 

17.2  OIL AND GAS

Oil and Gas’ objective when managing capital is to maintain the ability to fund operating costs and expenditures related to 

development and production assets, on a timely basis. Oil and Gas maintains an unsecured demand credit facility, which is used 

to finance operations in the short-term. Long-term capital includes share capital, contributed capital and retained earnings. Oil 

and Gas’ future requirements for capital are expected to increase, as construction begins on new development assets. During 

this time, it is expected that Oil and Gas’ cash from operations will be sufficient to fund a portion of its capital needs. Additional 

requirements will be funded entirely through contributed capital.

17.3  BULL ARM FABRICATION

Bull Arm Fabrication’s objective when managing capital is to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern. The focus of 

the capital management policy is to provide flexibility to ensure cash continues to be available to satisfy capital requirements. 

Commencing in January 2009, earnings are retained by Bull Arm Fabrication and reported in retained earnings. Prior to this, net 

earnings received were payable to the Province.

17.4  CHURCHILL FALLS

Churchill Falls’ objective when managing capital is to maintain its ability to continue as a going concern. Churchill Falls’ 

requirements for capital in the future are expected to increase, coincident with the aging of the plant and related infrastructure 

and the execution of the long-term asset management plan. The focus of the capital management policy is to provide flexibility 

to ensure cash continues to be available to satisfy capital requirements.  Managing the level of dividend payments is a key aspect 

of ensuring the availability of funding to maintain the plant and infrastructure. 

At present, the capital position of Churchill Falls is comprised entirely of equity capital (issued capital, shareholder contributions, 

reserves and retained earnings). The capital structure is adjusted through the amount of dividends paid to shareholders.
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18.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

18.1  FAIR VALUE

The estimated fair values of financial instruments as at December 31, 2012 are based on relevant market prices and information 

available at the time.  Fair value estimates are based on valuation techniques which are significantly affected by the assumptions 

used including the amount and timing of future cash flows and discount rates reflecting various degrees of risk.  As such, the 

fair value estimates below are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that Nalcor might receive or incur in actual market 

transactions.  

As a significant number of Nalcor’s assets and liabilities do not meet the definition of a financial instrument, the fair value 

estimates below do not reflect the fair value of Nalcor as a whole.

Establishing Fair Value

Financial instruments recorded at fair value are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the nature of the inputs used 

in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 -  valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 -  valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3 -  valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data  

(unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs exist. A financial instrument is 

classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in measuring fair value.

 
    Carrying  Fair  Carrying  Fair
   Level Value Value Value Value 

(millions of dollars)  December 31, 2012   December 31, 2011 

Financial assets        

 Cash and cash equivalents 1 12.1   12.1  18.7   18.7

 Short term investments 1 11.5  11.5  16.9   16.9

 Accounts receivable 1 125.0  125.0 163.6   163.6

 Derivative assets 2 0.1   0.1  0.2    0.2

 Sinking funds  investments in same Hydro issue 2 88.1   107.3 82.0  103.7

 Sinking funds  other investments 2 302.8  302.8 247.0  247.0

   Reserve fund 2 50.9  50.9  45.4   45.4

 Long term receivable 2 0.8  0.8 1.6   1.6

Financial liabilities        

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1 198.1   198.1   156.1   156.1

   Short term borrowings 1 125.0  125.0    

   Derivative liabilities 2 -   -  0.2   0.2

 Long term debt including amount        

      due within one year (before sinking  funds) 2 1,222.2   1,668.6 1,221.7   1,695.3

 Long term payables 2 82.4  82.6 42.7   43.2
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The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities approximates their carrying values due to their short-term maturity.

There were no financial assets or liabilities valued using Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

18.2  RISK MANAGEMENT

Nalcor is exposed to certain credit, liquidity and market price risks through its operating and financing activities. Financial risk 

is managed in accordance with a board approved policy, which outlines the objectives and strategies for the management of 

financial risk, including the use of derivative contracts. Permitted financial risk management strategies are aimed at minimizing 

the volatility of Nalcor’s expected future cash flows.

 

Credit Risk

Nalcor’s expected future cash flows are exposed to credit risk through its operating activities, primarily due to the potential 

for non-performance by its customers, and through its financing and investing activities, based on the risk of non-performance 

by counterparties to its financial instruments. The degree of exposure to credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, short-term 

investments, long-term investments and derivative assets as well as from the sale of electricity to customers, including the 

associated accounts receivable, is determined by the financial capacity and stability of those customers and counterparties. The 

maximum exposure to credit risk on these financial instruments is represented by their carrying values on the balance sheet at 

the reporting date. 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is considered to be minimal, as Nalcor’s cash deposits are held by a Canadian Schedule 

1 Chartered Bank with a rating of A+ (Standard and Poor’s). 

Credit risk on short-term investments is minimized by limiting holdings to high-quality, investment grade securities issued by the 

Governments of Canada or any of the provinces, as well as Bankers’ Acceptances and term deposits issued by Canadian Schedule 

1 Chartered Banks. 

Credit exposure on Nalcor’s sinking funds is limited by restricting the holdings to long-term debt instruments issued by the 

Government of Canada or any province of Canada, crown corporations and Canadian Schedule 1 Chartered Banks. The following 

credit risk table provides information on credit exposures according to issuer type and credit rating for the remainder of the long-

term investment portfolio:

 
   Issuer   Fair Value  Issuer Fair Value
   Credit Rating of Portfolio % Credit Rating of Portfolio % 

(millions of dollars)  2012   2011 

Provincial Governments  AA- to AAA  4.71%   AA  to AAA  4.19%

Provincial Governments  A- to A+  52.75%   A  to A+  57.75%

Provincially owned utilities  A- to A+  37.31%   A  to A+  32.43%

Schedule 1 Canadian banks  A- to A+  1.64%  A  to A+  1.31% 

Provincially owned utilities  BBB+  3.59%  BBB+  4.32%

      100.00%   100.00%
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Credit exposure on the reserve fund is mitigated by adhering to an investment policy which restricts the holdings to long-term 

debt instruments issued or guaranteed by the Government of Canada or any province of Canada. Investment in the long-term 

debt instruments of Canadian banks are also permitted, provided the bank is rated A or higher by Standard and Poor’s. With 

the exception of Government of Canada, holdings of any one issuer are limited to 10% of the total principal amount of the 

portfolio. The following credit risk table provides information on credit exposures according to issuer type and credit rating for the  

reserve fund:

   Issuer   Fair Value  Issuer Fair Value
   Credit Rating of Portfolio % Credit Rating of Portfolio % 

(millions of dollars)  2012   2011 

Provincial Governments  AA- to AAA  13.19%  AA  to AAA  17.03%

Canadian Schedule 1 banks  AA- to AAA  12.70%  AA  to AAA  17.94%

Provincial Governments  A- to A+  20.86% A  to A+  23.12%

Provincially owned utilities  A- to A+  13.39%  A  to A+  14.65%

Canadian Schedule 1 banks  A- to A+  39.86% A  to A+  27.26% 

      100.00%   100.00%

Credit exposure on derivative assets is limited by the Financial Risk Management Policy, which restricts available counterparties 

for hedge transactions to Canadian Schedule 1 Chartered Banks and Federally Chartered US Banks.

Nalcor’s exposure to credit risk on its energy sales and associated accounts receivable is determined by the credit quality of its 

customers. Nalcor’s three largest customers are not covered by the credit policies outlined in the Financial Risk Management 

Policy. These customers account for 83.8% (2011 - 72.3%) of total energy sales and 57.9% (2011 - 63.4%) of accounts receivable. 

These customers are comprised of rate regulated entities and/or organizations with investment grade credit ratings. 

Nalcor does not have any significant amounts that are past due and uncollectable, for which a provision has not been recognized 

at December 31, 2012.

Liquidity Risk

Nalcor is exposed to liquidity risk with respect to its contractual obligations and financial liabilities, including any derivative 

liabilities related to hedging activities.  Liquidity risk management is aimed at ensuring cash is available to meet those obligations 

as they become due.  

Short-term liquidity for Nalcor and its subsidiaries is mainly provided through cash and cash equivalents on hand, funds from 

operations and a $100.0 million (2011 - $100.0 million) demand operating credit facility which Nalcor maintains with its banker. 

In addition Hydro has access to a $300.0 million promissory note program and a $50.0 million (2011 - $50.0 million) unsecured 

demand operating credit facility. Oil and Gas and Churchill Falls also maintain small demand operating facilities of $5.0 million 

(2011 - $5.0 million) and $10.0 million (2011 - $10.0 million) respectively. Churchill Falls also maintains a $10.0 million minimum 

cash balance. 

Long-term liquidity risk for Nalcor is managed by the issuance of a portfolio of debentures with maturity dates ranging from 2013 

to 2033.  Sinking funds have been established for these issues, with the exception of the issue maturing in 2016. For Churchill 

Falls, long-term liquidity risk is managed by maintenance of the reserve fund in accordance with the June 1999 shareholders’ 

agreement and a dividend management policy that meets long-term liquidity requirements associated with Churchill Falls’ capital 

expenditure program.  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following are contractual maturities of Nalcor’s financial liabilities, including principal and interest as at December 31, 2012:

(millions of dollars) <1  Year 1 3 Years 3 5 Years >5 Years Total 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 198.1        198.1

Short term borrowings 125.0       125.0

Long term debt   125.0 375.0 725.0 1,225.0

Interest  61.8  160.6  135.7  588.7  946.8

Long term payables 15.3 156.1  406.7  796.1    1,374.2

   400.2 441.7  917.4 2,109.8  3,869.1

 

Market Risk 

In the course of carrying out its operating, financing and investing activities, Nalcor is exposed to possible market price 

movements that could impact expected future cash flow and the carrying value of certain financial assets and liabilities. Market 

price movements to which Nalcor has significant exposure include those relating to prevailing interest rates, foreign exchange 

rates, most notably USD/CAD, and current commodity prices, most notably the spot prices for diesel fuel, electricity, No. 6 fuel 

and oil. These exposures were addressed as part of the 2012 Financial Risk Management Strategy. 

Interest Rates

Changes in prevailing interest rates will impact the fair value of financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading or 

available for sale, which includes Nalcor’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, sinking funds and reserve fund. 

Expected future cash flows associated with those financial instruments can also be impacted. The impact of a 0.5% change in 

interest rates on net income and other comprehensive income associated with cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments 

and debt and short-term debt would have been negligible throughout 2012 due to the short time period to maturity. 

The table below shows the impact of a 50 basis point change in interest rates on net income and other comprehensive income 

associated with the sinking funds and reserve fund at the balance sheet date: 

      Net Income Other Comprehensive Income 

(millions of dollars)  0.5% decrease  0.5% increase  0.5% decrease  0.5% increase  

Sinking fund  (0.1 ) 0.1   11.0 (10.3)

Interest on reserve fund       1.1  (0.7)

    (0.1 ) 0.1   12.1  (11.0)

The impact of interest rates on the expected future cash outflows related to short-term debt, which includes promissory notes 

and banker’s acceptances issued under Nalcor’s credit lines and long-term debt, are managed within the corporate financing 

strategy, and whereby floating rate debt exposures and interest rate scenarios are forecast and evaluated. A diversified portfolio 

of fixed and floating rate debt is maintained and managed with a view to an acceptable risk profile. Key quantitative parameters 

for interest rate risk management includes the percentage of floating rate debt in the total debt portfolio, coupled with an 

examination of the weighted average term to maturity of the entire debt portfolio. By setting clear guidelines in respect to 

these quantitative parameters, Nalcor attempts to minimize the likelihood of a material impact on net income resulting from an 

unexpected change in interest rates.
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Foreign Currency and Commodity Exposure

Nalcor’s primary exposure to both foreign exchange and commodity price risk arises from its purchases of No. 6 fuel for 

consumption at the HTGS, USD denominated electricity sales, rental revenues and the sale of crude oil. These exposures are 

addressed in accordance with the board-approved Financial Risk Management Policy. Tactics used to address these exposures 

include the use of forward rate agreements and fixed price commodity swaps.

During 2012, total electricity sales denominated in USD were $33.8 million (2011 - $67.9 million). In 2012, Hydro mitigated foreign 

exchange risk on a portion of these sales through the use of foreign currency forward contracts. In March 2012, Hydro entered into 

a series of ten monthly foreign exchange forward contracts with a notional value of $39.1 million USD to hedge foreign exchange 

risk on 75% of Hydro’s planned USD electricity sales for the year. These contracts had an average exchange rate of $1.00 CAD  

per USD. In 2012, management elected not to implement commodity price hedges aimed at addressing electricity price risk due 

to depressed market pricing conditions. During 2012, $0.1 million in gains from these derivative contracts were included in other 

income and expense (2011 - $1.9 million loss). 

 

During 2012, total oil sales denominated in USD were $69.2 million (2011 - $90.4 million). While Oil and Gas had exposure to 

fluctuations in the USD/CAD exchange rate on those sales, a significant portion of Oil and Gas’ planned capital expenditures for 

2012 were denominated in USD, which mitigated this exposure. In 2012 Oil and Gas entered into a series of three commodity 

price swaps with a notional value of $2.8 million USD to mitigate price exposure on 10% of remaining budgeted production for 

the year. During 2012, $0.2 million in gains from these contracts were included in other income and expense (2011 - $2.0 million).

During 2012, total rental revenues at Bull Arm denominated in USD were $4.9 million (2011 - $3.9 million). In March 2012, Bull 

Arm entered into a series of nine monthly foreign exchange forward contracts with a notional value of $3.6 million USD to hedge 

foreign exchange risk on rental revenue. These contracts had an average exchange rate of $1.00 CAD per USD.

 

19.  NET FINANCE EXPENSE
 
(millions of dollars)  2012 2011 

Finance income        

 Interest on sinking fund 18.8 16.6

 Interest on reserve fund 1.6  1.5

 Other interest income 1.6  5.0

   22.0 23.1

Finance expense        

 Long term debt 90.5  90.5

 Accretion 2.7   0.5

 Debt guarantee fee 3.7   3.9

 Other 1.4  0.7

   98.3  95.6

 Interest capitalized during construction (2.7) (1.6)

   95.6  94.0

Net finance expense 73.6  70.9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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20.  SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
 
(millions of dollars) 2012 2011 

Accounts receivable  38.6  (70.0)

Inventory 1.4   (0.5)

Prepaid expenses (0.8) (0.1)

Regulatory assets 1.4   3.3

Regulatory liabilities 31.3  11.1

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 42.0   4.0

Changes in non cash working capital balances 113.9  (52.2)

Income taxes paid 0.1  0.2

Interest received 3.3  2.5

Interest paid 92.0  90.9

 

21.  SEGMENT INFORMATION  

Nalcor operates in seven business segments. Hydro Regulated encompasses sales of electricity to customers within the Province. 

Churchill Falls operates a hydroelectric generating facility and sells electricity primarily to Hydro-Quebec. Oil and Gas activities 

include exploration, development, production, transportation and processing sectors of the oil and gas industry. Bull Arm 

Fabrication consists of an industrial fabrication site which is leased for major construction of development projects. Energy 

Marketing includes the sale of electricity to markets outside the province and other non-regulated electricity sales. Muskrat 

Falls includes the development of a new hydroelectricity facility and related infrastructure in the province. Corporate and other 

activities encompass development activities including Phase 2 of the lower Churchill hydroelectric development and corporate 

activities. The designation of segments has been based on a combination of regulatory status and management accountability.  

The segments’ accounting policies are the same as those described in Note 2. 

       Corporate
   Hydro Churchill Oil and Energy and Other Muskrat Bull Inter
   Regulated  Falls Gas Marketing Activities  Falls   Arm Segment Total

(millions of dollars)    2012 

Revenue                 

 Energy sales 520.7  73.0 66.9 53.6 0.2  -  -  (4.0) 710.4

 Other revenue 2.1  0.5 4.5 -  -  -  5.2 3.4 15.7

   522.8  73.5 71.4 53.6 0.2 -  5.2 (0.6) 726.1

Expenses                 

 Fuels 182.4 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  182.4

 Power purchased 57.0 0.1  -  7.7  -  -  -  (4.0) 60.8

 Operations and administration 109.5 42.0 20.4 24.7  9.3  -  1.0 -  206.9

 Net finance expense 74.0 (1.6) (0.3) 0.1  1.4 -  -  -  73.6

 Amortization 47.5 12.7  18.7  -  0.3  -  0.1  -  79.3

   Other income and expense 5.3  (4.6) (0.1) (0.1) -  -  (0.1) -  0.4

 Regulatory adjustments 30.0 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  30.0

   505.7  48.6 38.7  32.4 11.0 -  1.0 (4.0) 633.4

Net income (loss) from operations 17.1  24.9 32.7  21.2 (10.8) -  4.2 3.4 92.7

Preferred dividends -  3.4 -  -  -  -  -  (3.4) -

Net income (loss) 17.1  28.3  32.7  21.2 (10.8) -  4.2 -  92.7

Capital expenditures  77.6 30.1  88.8 -  5.6 275.3  -  -  477.4

Total assets 1,906.4 456.2 392.7  3.5 252.5 443.3  13.6 (21.3) 3,446.9

406



       Corporate
   Hydro Churchill Oil and Energy and Other Muskrat Bull Inter
   Regulated  Falls Gas Marketing Activities  Falls   Arm Segment Total

(millions of dollars)    2011 

Revenue                 

 Energy sales 473.6  66.2  88.5  75.6        (3.9 ) 700.0

 Other revenue  2.3  0.3  3.5        4.7  3.3  14.1

   475.9  66.5  92.0 75.6      4.7  (0.6 ) 714.1

Expenses                 

 Fuels 154.9                154.9

 Power purchased 52.2      4.6        (3.9 ) 52.9

 Operations and administration 104.4  41.8 21.4  22.7  8.8   1.0   200.1

 Net finance expense 73.5  (1.4 ) (0.1 ) (0.6 ) (0.5 )       70.9

 Amortization 43.2  12.2  29.6    0.2        85.2

 Other income and expense 0.5  (7.2 ) 2.0 1.8 0.1         (2.8)

 Regulatory adjustments 24.1                24.1

   452.8 45.4  52.9  28.5  8.6    1.0 (3.9) 585.3

Net income (loss) from operations 23.1  21.1  39.1  47.1  (8.6 )   3.7  3.3  128.8

Preferred dividends   3.3            (3.3 ) 

Net income (loss) 23.1  24.4  39.1  47.1  (8.6 )   3.7    128.8

Capital expenditures 62.3  25.6  63.3    13.5  89.2       253.9

Total assets 1,867.5  436.6  329.5  3.9  277.0 168.2  9.2  (50.1) 3,041.8

All of Nalcor’s physical assets are located in the province and all revenues are generated in Canada.

 

22.  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Under the terms of a sublease with Twin Falls, expiring on December 31, 2014, Churchill Falls is required to deliver to Twin 

Falls, at an agreed price, horsepower equivalent to the installed horsepower of the Twin Falls plant and to maintain Twin 

Falls’ plant and equipment. The costs associated with making the plant operational, if required, are not estimable at this 

time. Beginning in 2015, Churchill Falls is required to make this horsepower available to Hydro at rates that are commercially 

reasonable pursuant to the 1999 shareholders’ agreement.

(b) The results of an Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) conducted at the Twin Falls Generating Station indicated higher than 

acceptable concentrations of contaminants in the soil and waters adjacent to the powerhouse. Further testing was conducted 

to determine the extent of contamination. The recommendations arising from this testing indicate that remediation is not 

required, but that further monitoring be carried out. Monitoring was performed throughout 2010 with no remediation 

required. However, the 2010 sampling did indicate some increase in PCB concentrations in sediment and fish flesh in specific 

locations, and an increased frequency of monitoring was recommended.  Further sampling has now been scheduled for 2013. 

(c)   Hydro has entered into power sales agreements with third parties. To facilitate market access, Hydro has entered into a 

transmission service agreement with Hydro-Quebec TransEnergie, which concludes in 2014, to acquire access to 265 MW 

of transmission capacity from Labrador through Quebec. Hydro has the right to renew its transmission service contract at 

the end of the contract term. If at that time there is a competing request for the same path, in order to renew the service 

agreement, Hydro must agree to accept a contract term that is at least equal to that competing request.
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 Pursuant to Hydro’s five-year transmission service agreement with Hydro-Quebec TransEnergie, the transmission rental 

payments to contract maturity are as follows:

 
 2013  $18.9 million

 2014  $4.7 million

 

(d) Nalcor and its subsidiaries have received claims instituted by various companies and individuals with respect to outages and 

other miscellaneous matters. Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management currently considers 

Nalcor’s exposure to such claims and litigation, to the extent not covered by insurance policies or otherwise provided for, to 

be $0.3 million (2011 - $0.4 million).

 One of Hydro’s industrial customers commenced legal proceedings in 1997, claiming approximately $21.9 million  

(2011 - $21.9 million) related to outages and plant shutdowns.  Hydro is defending this claim. While the ultimate outcome 

of this action is not determinable at this time, in the opinion of Hydro’s management, following consultation with its legal 

counsel, no liability should be recognized.

(e) Outstanding commitments for capital projects total approximately $531.8 million as at December 31, 2012 (2011 - $54.0 million). 

In addition, Oil and Gas has committed to fund its share of all exploration and development projects.

(f) Hydro has entered into a number of long-term power purchase agreements as follows:

Type    Rating  In service Date Term 

Hydroelectric  175 kW  1988 Continual 

Hydroelectric  3 MW  1995 25 years

Hydroelectric  4 MW  1998 25 years

Cogeneration  15 MW  2003 20 years

Wind  390 kW  2004 15 years

Wind  27 MW  2008 20 years

Wind  27 MW  2009 20 years

 

Estimated payments due in each of the next five years are as follows:

 
(millions of dollars)  2013  2014  2015  2016  2017

Power purchases  24.9  24.5   24.7 24.9  25.2

 

(g) Nalcor has issued four irrevocable letters of credit. One was issued to the Department of Fisheries and Oceans (DFO), two 

were issued to the Newfoundland Labrador Offshore Petroleum Board and one was issued to Newfoundland Transshipment.  

The letter of credit issued to DFO in the amount of $0.3 million was in connection to the operation of the hydroelectric assets 

on the Exploits River. The remaining letters of credit totaled $4.8 million and relate to Oil and Gas to ensure compliance with 

regulations relating to petroleum and natural gas exploration and production activities.

 Hydro has issued 23 irrevocable letters of credit to the New Brunswick System Operator totaling $18.6 million as credit 

support related to applications for point to point transmission services. In addition Hydro has issued one letter of credit to 

the Department of Fisheries and Oceans in the amount of $0.3 million as a performance guarantee in relation to the Fish 

Habitat Compensation Agreement. 
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 Churchill Falls has issued two irrevocable letters of credit, totaling $2.0 million, to ensure satisfactory management of its 

waste management and compliance with a certificate of approval for the transportation of special hazardous wastes granted 

by the Department of Environment and Conservation.

(h) Hydro has received funding, in the amount of $3.0 million, from the Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency in relation to 

a wind-hydrogen-diesel research and development project. This funding is repayable in annual installments of $25,000 

per commercial implementation of the resulting product. As at December 31, 2012 there have been no commercial 

implementations.

(i) On February 23, 2010, Churchill Falls filed a motion against Hydro-Quebec in the Quebec Superior Court.  The motion is 

seeking a modification to the pricing terms of the Power Contract as of November 30, 2009. The trial is scheduled for the fall 

of 2013. The outcome of this motion is not determinable at this time.

23.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Nalcor enters into various transactions with its parent and other affiliates.  These transactions occur within the normal course of 

operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration agreed to by the related parties.  

Related parties with which Nalcor transacts are as follows:

Related Party Relationship

The Province 100% shareholder of Nalcor Energy.

Churchill Falls Jointly controlled subsidiary of Hydro. 

Twin Falls Jointly controlled subsidiary of Churchill Falls.

The Trust Created by the Province with Churchill Falls as the beneficiary.

Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities (PUB) Agency of the Province.

Routine operating transactions with related parties are settled at prevailing market prices under normal trade terms. 

(a) Hydro has entered into a long-term power contract with Churchill Falls for the purchase of $6.1 million (2011 - $6.0 million) 

of the power produced by Churchill Falls. 

(b) Hydro is required to contribute to the cost of operations of the PUB as well as the cost of hearings and applications 

costs.  During 2012, Hydro incurred $1.5 million (2011 - $1.2 million) in costs related to the PUB of which $0.6 million  

(2011 - $0.6 million) was included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

(c) The 2012 debt guarantee fee payable to the Province was $3.7 million (2011 - $3.9 million). Both the 2012 and 2011 debt 

guarantee fees were paid in full in March 2012.

(d) The Petroleum Exploration Enhancement Program (PEEP) was established as part of the Newfoundland and Labrador Energy 

Plan.  PEEP is designed to boost new petroleum exploration in Western Newfoundland through the acquisition and assessment 

of seismic data.  Funding for PEEP is provided by the Province and the program is administered by Oil and Gas.  Total funding 

available under PEEP is $5.0 million over five years. There was no funding provided in 2012 (2011 - $4.5 million) and $1.8 

million is included in Deferred Credits (2011 - $2.5 million).
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(e) The Offshore Geoscience Data Project (OGDP) was established as part of the Newfoundland and Labrador Energy Plan.  

OGDP is designed to boost new offshore petroleum exploration in Newfoundland through the acquisition and assessment of 

seismic data.  Funding for OGDP is provided by the Province and the program is administered by Oil and Gas.  Total funding 

available under OGDP is $20.0 million over two years. In 2012, funding of $2.3 million was received from the Province  

(2011 - $10.5 million) of which $3.0 million has been recorded as Deferred Credits (2011 - $4.4 million). 

(f) Prior to January 1, 2009, the Provincial Minister of Finance was authorized to invest any surplus from Bull Arm Fabrication’s 

operations. Each year, the surplus or deficit from operations was credited or charged to the Distribution payable to the 

Province, however, there are no set terms of payment. The balance contains the accumulated results of operations of Bull 

Arm Fabrication since inception up to January 1, 2009, less any distributions paid to the Province. Effective January 1, 2009, 

earnings are to be retained and are reflected in retained earnings. As at December 31, 2012, $0.8 million (2011 - $0.8 million) 

of distributions payable to the Province are included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

(g) During 2010, Bull Arm Fabrication received $1.0 million in funding from the Province of which $0.3 million was recognized 

as revenue in 2011. No grant revenue was received or recognized during 2012.

(h) Nalcor, as the operator of the Exploits assets, has a net payable to the Province of $17.4 million (2011 - $9.9 million) which 

is included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Nalcor operates these assets on behalf of the Province on a cost 

recovery basis.

(i) On February 3, 2010, the Province established the Trust with Churchill Falls as the beneficiary. The purpose of this trust 

is to fund the external costs and expenses in relation to the motion filed by Churchill Falls seeking a modification to 

the pricing terms of the Power Contract. To date, $1.8 million (2011 - $1.4 million) has been received and $0.2 million  

(2011 - $0.2 million) has been accrued as due from the Trust.

(j) Under the terms and conditions of the Churchill Falls (Labrador) Corporation (Lease) Act, 1961, Churchill Falls must pay rentals 

and royalties to the Province annually. As at December 31, 2012, $6.2 million (2011 - $5.3 million) was payable.

(k) Hydro received contributions in aid of construction from the Province related to wind feasibility studies. As at  

December 31, 2012, $1.9 million (2011 - $3.5 million) has been recorded in Deferred credits.

(l) In relation to Nalcor’s financial obligations with respect to the upper Churchill Redress Agreement, the Province provided 

funding in the amount of $39.9 million which is recorded as Other long-term assets. This funding will be used to offset 

payments to the Innu Nation.

24.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Forward Contracts

On January 18, 2013, Oil and Gas entered into a total of 11 commodity price swap contracts with a notional value of USD  

$25.3 million to mitigate commodity price exposure on energy sales. These contracts provide Oil and Gas with an average fixed 

price of $107.45 per barrel on approximately 36.0% of the estimated production for 2013.

410



In January 2013, Hydro entered into a total of 12 forward contracts with a notional value of US $23.0 million to mitigate a 

portion of the USD exposure on recall sales through to the end of 2013. The average rate on these forward contracts was  

$1.01 CAD per USD.

In January 2013, Bull Arm Fabrication entered into a total of 22 forward contracts with a notional value of US $10.1 million to 

mitigate USD/CAD exposure on a portion of its USD denominated lease revenue. The average rate on these forward contracts was 

$1.01 CAD per USD.

Cancellation of letters of credit

In February 2013, Hydro cancelled 23 letters of credit related to the New Brunswick System Operator totalling $18.6 million.

Demand Operating Facility

Subsequent to the year end, Nalcor increased the credit available under its demand operating facility from $100 million to  

$150 million.

Equity Contribution

In each of January and March 2013, Nalcor received a contributed capital of $100.0 million from the Province.

Change in Ownership

On February 11, 2013, Emera Newfoundland & Labrador Holdings Inc. contributed $67.7 million to the LIL Partnership in exchange 

for 25 Class B Limited Units in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Labrador-Island Link Limited Partnership Agreement. 

As a result, Nalcor’s ownership in the LIL Partnership changed from 100% to 65%. 

Capital Commitments

Subsequent to year end, Nalcor entered into new commitments totaling $434.8 million related to the Muskrat Falls project.

25.  COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the 2012 financial statement presentation of regulatory 

accounting adjustments.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Management responsibility for financial reporting 

The financial statements of the Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission were
prepared by management who are responsible for the integrity and fairness of the data presented,
including significant accounting judgments and estimates. This responsibility includes selecting
appropriate accounting principles consistent with International Financial Reporting Standards.
Financial information contained elsewhere in this Annual Performance Report is consistent with
these financial statements.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management
maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary internal controls
designed to provide reasonable assurance that relevant and reliable financial information is produced
and that assets are properly safeguarded. The Internal Auditor performs audits designed to test
the adequacy and consistency of the Commission’s internal controls, practices and procedures.

The Board of Directors oversees management responsibility for financial reporting through 
its Financial Services Committee. The Financial Services Committee oversees the external audit 
of the Commission’s annual financial statements and the accounting and financial reporting and
disclosure processes and policies of the Commission. The Financial Services Committee meets
with management, the independent actuary and the independent auditors to discuss the results
of the audit, the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality and integrity of financial
reporting. The Commission’s annual financial statements are reviewed by the Financial Services
Committee with each of management and the external auditors before being recommended to
the Board of Directors for approval.

The firm of Morneau Shepell has been appointed as independent consulting actuary to the
Commission. Its role is to complete an independent actuarial valuation of the benefit liabilities 
of the Commission on an annual basis and to report thereon in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles. 

Ernst & Young, LLP, the external auditors of the Commission, have performed an independent
audit of the 2012 financial statements of the Commission in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. The Independent Auditors’ Report outlines the scope of this 
independent audit and the opinion expressed.

Leslie Galway
Chief Executive Officer

Paul Kavanagh
Chief Financial & Information Officer
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ACTUARIAL STATEMENT OF OPINION 

 
I have completed the actuarial valuation of the benefit liabilities of the Workplace Health, Safety and 

Compensation Commission of Newfoundland and Labrador (the “Commission”) as at December 31, 2012 (the 

“valuation date”).  Details of the data, actuarial assumptions, valuation methods and results are included in the 

actuarial valuation report as at the valuation date, of which this statement of opinion forms part.  In my 

opinion:  

1. The estimate of the actuarial liabilities for assessed employers as at the valuation date is $968,803,986.  
This includes provisions for benefits and future administration expenses expected to be paid after the 
valuation date for claims that occurred on or before the valuation date.  It also includes a provision for 
potential long-latency occupational disease claims associated with exposure that occurred on or before 
the valuation date.  Self-insured employers are not included in this valuation. 

2. The data on which the valuation is based were supplied by the Commission in accordance with 
specifications provided by us.  We applied such checks of reasonableness of the data as we considered 
appropriate, and have concluded that the data are sufficient and reliable for the purpose of the valuation. 

3. The actuarial assumptions adopted in computing the liabilities are appropriate for the purpose of the 
valuation. 

4. The methods used are appropriate for the purpose of the valuation and in accordance with accepted 
actuarial practice for workers compensation organizations in Canada.  The economic assumptions are 
consistent with the long-term financial strategy and long-term investment policies of the Commission.  
The discount rates used are disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements. 

5. The amount of the actuarial liabilities makes appropriate provision for all personal injury compensation 
obligations and the financial statements fairly present the results of the valuation. 

6. This report has been prepared, and my opinions given, in accordance with accepted actuarial practice in 
Canada. 

7. The valuation is based on the provisions of the Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Act of 
Newfoundland and Labrador and on the Commission’s policies and practices in effect on the valuation 
date. 

 
 

 

_____________________________ 

Conrad Ferguson, F.C.I.A. 

Morneau Shepell Ltd. 

March 25, 2013 
 
This report has been peer reviewed by Howard Slaney, F.C.I.A.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

 

To the Board of Directors of the 

Workplace Health, Safety, and Compensation Commission 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Workplace Health, Safety, and Compensation 
Commission, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2012, and the 
statement of operations and comprehensive income, changes in fund deficiency and cash flows for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Workplace Health, Safety, and Compensation Commission as at December 31, 2012, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

 

St. John’s, Canada       
April 4, 2013 Chartered accountants 
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Statement of FINANCIAL POSITION
as at December 31

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,919 $ 15,672
Accounts receivable [note 5] 8,452 11,750
Investments [note 6] 842,889 755,819
Property, plant and equipment [note 9] 8,583 8,451
Intangible assets [note 10] 16,201 15,254

$ 910,044 $ 806,946

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 12] 17,128 14,758
Employee future benefits [note 15] 5,905 5,177
Benefit liabilities [note 14] 968,804 858,641

Total liabilities 991,837 878,576

Fund deficiency (81,793) (71,630)

$ 910,044 $ 806,946

Commitments [note 23]

Authorized for issue on April 4, 2013 on behalf of the Board of Directors

_______________________________________ ________________________________
Ralph Tucker Darren Roberts
Chairperson Director

See accompanying notes.
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Statements of OPERATIONS and COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Year ended December 31

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Revenue
Assessments revenue [note 13] $ 197,488 $ 188,367
Investment income (loss) [note 7] 82,634 (11,602)
Third party recoveries 838 1,049

280,960 177,814

Expenses
Claims costs incurred [note 14]
Short term disability 30,311 29,913
Long term disability 68,081 65,138
Survivor benefits 4,933 5,359
Health care 44,598 48,224
Rehabilitation 1,296 1,544
Occupational disease 63,380
Actuarial adjustments 26,015 (1,245)
Future administration costs 4,001 3,911

242,615 152,844

Administration [note 16] 33,869 32,543
Legislated obligations [note 17] 7,624 6,952
Fees and interest [note 7] 3,749 3,245
Amortization [notes 9 and 10] 2,664 2,491
Other expenses [note 18] 592 1,520

291,113 199,595

Comprehensive loss $ (10,153) $ (21,781)

See accompanying notes.
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Statement of CHANGES IN FUND DEFICIENCY
Year ended December 31

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Accumulated operating deficit
Balance, beginning of year $ (72,190) $ (50,409)
Comprehensive loss (10,153) (21,781)

(82,343) (72,190)

Reserves
Occupational Health and Safety
Research [note 19] 550 560

Fund deficiency, end of year $ (81,793) $ (71,630)

See accompanying notes.
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Statement of CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash received from:
Employers, for assessments $ 200,787 $ 186,593
Third parties 838 1,049

201,625 187,642
Cash paid to:
Claimants or third parties on their behalf (132,452) (133,504)
Suppliers and employees, for administrative
and other goods and services (38,986) (41,158)
Investment manager, interest & other fees (2,881) (2,582)
Third party, from reserve fund (10) (80)

(174,329) (177,324)

Net cash provided from operating activities 27,296 10,318

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from:
Interest 10,580 10,930
Dividends 12,823 10,181
Sale of investments 351,997 410,619

375,400 431,730
Cash paid for:
Purchase of investments (380,705) (431,404)
Purchase of capital assets (3,744) (2,857)

(384,449) (434,261)

Net cash used for investing activities (9,049) (2,531)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 18,247 7,787

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 15,672 7,885

End of year $ 33,919 $ 15,672
See accompanying notes.
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Notes to FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Commission (the Commission) was established
by the Newfoundland Legislature in 1951, under the Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation
Act (the Act), as amended. The Commission is a legislative incorporated entity with no share
capital. The main office of the Commission is located at 146 148 Forest Road, St. John’s,
Newfoundland and Labrador, Canada. The Commission operates two regional offices in
Newfoundland in Grand Falls Windsor and Corner Brook.

The Commission is responsible for, in accordance with the provisions of the Act, preventing and
reducing the occurrence of workplace injuries and diseases through the promotion of health and
safety in workplaces; the establishment of occupational health and safety certification standards
and certification of trainers; facilitating the claims management process and administering the
payment of benefits to injured workers and dependents of fatally injured workers; levying and
collecting assessment revenues from established classes of employers in amounts sufficient to
cover the current and future costs of existing claims; and investing funds, following investment
policies which are approved by the Commission within guidelines established under the Insurance
Companies Act (Canada). An independent Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Review
Division is established under the Act to make rulings on any appeals pertaining to the Commission
assessment or benefit decisions. The Commission does not receive government funding or other
assistance.

The funds, investments and income of the Commission are free from taxation pursuant to Section
10(2) of the Act.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Going concern
The Commission has assessed the relevant financial and economic indicators and has determined
that there is an ability to operate as a going concern, as supported by the funding strategy in place
for the elimination of the unfunded liability.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value as explained in the significant accounting
policies below. Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
assets.

The financial statements are presented in Canadian currency, (unless otherwise indicated).

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

639



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents and short term investments
Cash and cash equivalents and short term investments include cash, bank overdrafts and money
market instruments. Those with original maturity dates at time of purchase of three months or
less are classified as cash equivalents, whereas those with original maturities beyond 3 months,
and less the 12 months are classified as short term investments. Cash, cash equivalents and
short term investments are measured at fair value. Cash equivalents bear interest rates of 1.25%
1.27% (2011 1.2%).

Assessments revenue
At the beginning of each year, an assessment is levied on employers by applying their industry
assessment rate to their estimated payrolls at which point revenue is recognized. The assessment
levy is payable by installments within the current year. At year end, assessment revenue is
adjusted based on a review of the employers’ actual payrolls, as well for the estimate of practice
incentive refunds which are payable to the employers under the Prevention & Return to Work
Insurance Management for Employers/Employees Program (PRIME).

Assessment revenue also includes payments from self insured employers, who directly bear the
costs of their own incurred claims and their share of administration costs.

Accounts receivable
Actual employers’ payrolls may differ from original estimates. Therefore, at year end, a provision
for accrued assessments is included in accounts receivable based on historical assessment
information.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reported at cost, less accumulated amortization. These assets
are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building 40 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 1 to 5 years
Equipment under capital lease 3 to 5 years

At the end of each reporting period, the useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed and adjusted if required, and an assessment is made whether there is any indication of
impairment.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets, which include purchased software and internally developed systems are
recorded at cost and are amortized monthly on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives of ten years. Intangible assets are assessed for an indication of impairment at the end of
each reporting period, and if an asset is determined to be impaired, its carrying value is reduced
to the net recoverable amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Benefit liabilities
The benefit liabilities represent the actuarial present value of all future benefit payments
expected to be made for injuries which occurred in the current fiscal year or in any prior year.
The benefit liabilities include a provision for all benefits provided by current legislation, policies
and/or business practices in respect of existing claims and for future costs of administering claims.

The benefit liabilities were valued by an independent actuary using accepted actuarial practices in
accordance with the standards established by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries.

Benefit liabilities related to self insured employers will be the responsibility of those employers
when paid in future years. Accordingly, these benefit liabilities have not been determined by
actuarial valuation and thus are not included in the Commission’s benefit liabilities.

Foreign currency translation
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into their Canadian dollar
equivalent using exchange rates in effect on the reporting date. Revenues and expenses are
translated using exchange rates in effect at the transaction date. Realized and unrealized
exchange gains or losses are included in comprehensive income.

Investments
Investments are designated as fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). Realized gains and losses
on the sale of investments, and unrealized gains and losses arising from the change in fair value of
the investments are recorded in investment income during the period in which they arise. All
purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the dates the trades are executed. Income
from interest and dividends are recognized as investment income in the period earned.

The fair value of publicly traded investments is based on quoted prices from security exchanges,
while that of domestic real estate investments is based on independent appraisals, and pooled
fund units are valued at their year end net asset values.

Financial instruments
The Commission’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
investments, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and derivatives. The carrying value of
financial instruments, with the exception of investments and derivatives, approximate fair value
due to their immediate or short term maturity and normal credit terms.

The following is a summary of the accounting model the Commission has elected to apply to each
of its significant categories of financial instruments.

Asset/Liability Classification Measurement

Cash and cash equivalents FVTPL Fair Value
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Investments FVTPL Fair value
Derivatives Held for trading Fair value
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities Other liabilities Amortized cost

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivatives are financial contracts whose price is dependent on the price of one or more
underlying securities. The notional principal amounts, upon which payments are based, are not
recognized in these financial statements. The investment portfolio does not contain any
derivatives intended for speculation purposes and does not hold derivatives on a segregated basis
but does have indirect exposure through its pooled fund investments.

The fair value of the Commission’s derivative positions is determined by the following methods:

1) Interest rate swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps are valued
based on discounted cash flows using current market yields and exchange rates.

2) Futures contracts are valued based on quoted market prices.

Financial instruments are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1 Valuation based on quoted prices [unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2 Valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly [i.e., as prices] or
indirectly [i.e., derived from prices].

Level 3 Valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data [unobservable inputs].

Financial instruments included in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy consist of cash and cash
equivalents and equities. All other financial instruments are included in level 2, with the
exception of asset backed commercial paper which is included in level 3.

Employee future benefits
Accumulated annual leave is accounted for on an accrual basis in the period during which
employees render service, and has been actuarially determined.

Employees participate in the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador’s Public Service Pension
Plan [PPSP], a multi employer defined benefit plan. The employer’s contributions are expensed as
incurred.

The Commission provides a severance payment upon resignation, retirement or termination. The
expected costs of providing this employee future benefit is accounted for on an accrual basis and
has been actuarially determined using the projected benefit method prorated on service, and
management’s best estimate of salary escalation, and retirement ages of employees. Discount
rates are based on the market yields of high quality corporate bonds. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognized immediately through the statement of operations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Third party recoveries
In certain circumstances, under Section 45 of the Act, the Commission is deemed to be an
assignee of a cause of action in respect of a claimant disability. The amount by which settlements
exceed the cost of the action, including administration and future benefit entitlement, is paid to
the worker or dependents. Amounts received from third party recoveries are recorded in the
year during which the settlement occurs. No provision is made in the benefit liability for possible
future third party recoveries due to their contingent nature.

Reserves
In accordance with Section 20.5 (1) of the Act, the Commission maintains a special reserve fund
for the purpose of health and safety research. The Act permits the Commission to allocate up to a
maximum of 2% of its total assessment and investment income in each calendar year to establish
and maintain this special fund.

In accordance with Section 116 (1) of the Act, the Commission may, at its discretion, establish
reserves for the following:

 to meet an increase in the capitalization of compensation payments payable in future years
where the increase cannot be provided without placing an undue burden on the employers
in an industrial classification;

 to meet the loss arising from a disaster or other circumstances which would unfairly burden
the employers in an industrial classification; or

 subject to the approval of the Lieutenant Governor in Council, to meet the costs of
particular needs of the Commission that it considers necessary.

Future accounting pronouncements
The Commission monitors the activities of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and considers the impact that changes in the standards may have on the Commission’s financial
reporting. Some of the ongoing projects which may impact the Commission are as follows:

IFRS 4: Insurance Contracts
In July 2010, the IASB issued an exposure draft proposing a comprehensive measurement
approach for all types of insurance contracts. The Commission is analyzing the impact this new
standard will have on its financial statements. It is anticipated that the IASB will issue a revised
exposure draft in the first half of 2013.

IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 provides guidance on how to measure the fair value of financial and non financial assets
and liabilities when required or permitted by IFRS. The standard is effective for annual periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of IFRS 13 will affect the fair value of
certain investments and thus affect the profit and fund deficiency of the Commission.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

643



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IAS 17: Leases
The IASB has issued an exposure draft which proposes new single approach to lease accounting
that would ensure that all assets and liabilities arising under lease contracts are recognized in the
statement of financial position. The Commission is analyzing the impact this new standard will
have on it financial statements. It is anticipated that the IASB will issue a second re exposure
draft in the second quarter of 2013.

IAS 19: Employee Benefits
The IASB has issued a revised standard on employee benefits which is applicable for years
beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The revised standard will require the impact of changes in
actuarial assumptions from year to year be recorded in other comprehensive income rather than
the Commission’s current practice of recording through the statement of operations.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Benefit liabilities
An actuarial valuation of the benefit liabilities is prepared by an independent firm of consulting
actuaries who have rendered their opinion that the valuation was prepared in accordance with
accepted actuarial practice, and that the actuarial assumptions are appropriate.

The Commission believes that the amount provided for benefit liabilities as at December 31, 2012,
is adequate, recognizing that actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 14 may change over time
to reflect underlying economic trends. Such changes could possibly cause a material change in
the actuarial present value of the future payments.

Assessments revenue
Accounts receivable at year end include an estimate of annual premium revenues for the year
that have not yet been received from employers. The recorded amounts are based upon
management’s best information and judgment, with regards to actual experience in preceding
years. However, until all employers actually submit their final annual payroll information to the
Commission, the recorded assessments revenues for the year and the estimated amounts
receivable at year end are subject to measurement uncertainty.

Employee future benefits
An actuarial valuation of severance and annual leave liabilities is prepared by an independent firm
of consulting actuaries, using the assumptions disclosed in note 15. Changes in these assumptions
could have a material impact on the accrued benefit obligations.
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5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Assessments $ 9,134 $ 9,784
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 4,632 4,071

4,502 5,713

Accrued assessments 1,379 3,318
Other 2,571 2,719

$ 8,452 $ 11,750

6. INVESTMENTS

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Fair value Cost Fair value Cost

Fixed term $ 265,061 $ 262,118 $ 274,764 $ 267,057
Equities 538,546 471,902 467,740 437,586
Real Estate 39,282 35,000 13,315 12,333

$ 842,889 $ 769,020 $ 755,819 $ 716,976

Derivatives
At December 31, 2012 the fair value of the Commission’s derivative portfolio was $165,216
[notional value of $26,744,973]. Derivative instruments held at December 31, 2011 had a fair
value of $271,919 [notional value of $13,542,470].

7. INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)

Investment income (loss) is comprised of the following:

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Interest and dividends $ 22,871 $ 21,111
Realized gain (loss) on sale of investments 14,708 (23,906)
Interest on short term investments 532 412
Unrealized gain (loss) on change in fair
market value of investments 44,523 (9,219)

Net investment income (loss) $ 82,634 $ (11,602)
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7. INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS) (continued)

Fees and interest are comprised of the following:

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Fund Managers’ Investment Fees $ 2,767 $ 2,569
Banking Fees 96 135
Bad Debt expense 868 456
Interest paid to claimants 18 85

Fees and interest $ 3,749 $ 3,245

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commission manages its investment portfolio in accordance with its long term investment
policy. The investment risk inherent in an investment portfolio is managed through diversification
in both asset classes and investments within each asset class. The Commission also engages a
number of different fund managers with a broad range of investment philosophies and styles.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the governance and strategic direction of the
Commission’s investments through its review and approval of the long term investment policy and
ensuring adherence to the policy. Management is responsible for monitoring performance, regular
reporting to the board, and recommending changes in the investment policy or fund managers.
The Board and Management use the services of an external consultant to benchmark the
performance of fund managers and to provide advice on investment policies and practices.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair Value
(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011
Level 1
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,270 $ 15,785
Equity 533,813 460,653

549,083 476,438

Level 2
Fixed term investments 254,524 263,686
Real Estate 39,282 13,315

293,806 277,001
Level 3
Asset Backed Commercial Paper1 2,380

$ 842,889 $ 755,819

1The Commission sold its Asset Backed Commercial Paper (ABCP) in August 2012 for proceeds of $2,300,000.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The following sections describe the key financial risk exposures and management strategies to
mitigate these risks.

Credit risk management
Credit exposure on fixed income securities arises from the possibility that the issuer of an
instrument fails to meet its obligation to make interest payments and repay principal. At December
31, 2012, 85.0% [2011 88.7%] of the fixed income assets in the portfolio have at least an “A” credit
rating. The Commission does not anticipate that any issuers will fail to meet their obligations.

The Commission may invest in short term commercial debt or paper rated R1 or higher. Provincial
short term debt and debt of agencies guaranteed by the provinces may be rated lower than R1.
The short term portfolio investments held with any one corporate issuer is limited to 10%, at any
given time, of the Commission’s estimated annual cash receipts.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies will fluctuate due to changes in their respective exchange rates compared to the
Canadian dollar. Investments denominated in foreign currency are translated into Canadian dollars
at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Forward foreign exchange and future
contracts are used to hedge the currency risk of certain foreign denominated fixed term
investments. Hedge accounting has not been applied to hedging arrangements. The Commission
does not undertake hedging strategies for the currency risk of foreign equity investments.

As at December 31, 2012, the Commission’s holdings in foreign equities and pooled equity funds
had a market value of $227.9 million [2011 $191.3 million] representing 27.0% [2011 – 25.3%] of
the market value of the total investment portfolio.

The table below presents the effect of a 10% appreciation in the value of the Canadian/U.S. dollar
and the Canadian dollar/Euro on the value of the equity portfolio.

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

CAD/USD CAD/EURO CAD/USD CAD/EURO
10% appreciation in the Canadian dollar $ (13,422) $ (2,488) $ (10,571) $ (2,596)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial security will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates. The Commission is exposed to interest rate risk through investment in fixed
income securities. Interest rate risk is managed through diversification of fixed income securities
through sector allocation and security duration.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The table below presents the effect of a 50 basis point (bps) and 100 bps changes in interest rates
on the fixed income portfolio:

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Change in nominal interest rates +50bps +100pbs +50bps +100pbs
Nominal bonds $ (8,261) $ (16,259) $ (8,387) $ (16,493)

The table below represents the remaining term to maturity of the Commission’s fixed term
investments:

(thousands of dollars) Remaining Term to Maturity

Fixed term Investments Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

2012 Fair Value $ 42,981 $ 44,002 $ 178,078 $ 265,061

2011 Fair Value $ 23,297 $ 74,622 $ 168,147 $ 266,066

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Commission will be unable to meet its contractual obligations and
financial liabilities. The Commission manages liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows and by
ensuring that it has sufficient cash and credit facilities available to meet its obligations and
liabilities.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of marketable securities or long term investments will
change as a result of changes in the market price. Market prices of securities are subject to change
as a result of perceived or real underlying changes in the economic condition of the issuer, the
relative price of alternative investments, and general market conditions.

The Commission manages market risk through adherence to an investment policy that prescribes
an asset mix that provides for the diversification of risk across a broad group of securities that meet
the long term return objectives of the investments portfolio.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The table below presents the effects of a material change in the key risk variable, the sector
benchmark, for each of the equity mandates in the Commission’s equity portfolio.

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Equities 1 std dev 2 std dev 1 std dev 2 std dev

% Change in market benchmark (17%) (33.9%) (17%) (34%)
Canadian equity $ (45,092) $ (78,768) $ (40,254) $ (70,295)

% Change in market benchmark (13.2%) (26.5%) (13.1%) (26.2%)
Non Canadian equity $ (26,629) $ (47,686) $ (22,177) $ (39,745)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value

Net Book
Value

Land $ 3,000 $ $ 3,000 $ 3,000
Building 10,727 6,141 4,586 4,781
Furniture and equipment 2,765 2,499 266 243
Computer equipment 4,301 3,570 731 427

$ 20,793 $ 12,210 $ 8,583 $ 8,451
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(thousands of dollars) 2012

Opening
Balance

Additions/
Depreciation Disposals

Closing
Balance

Cost
Land $ 3,000 $ 3,000
Buildings 10,727 10,727
Furniture & equipment 2,698 99 (32) 2,765
Computer equipment 4,493 614 (806) 4,301
Total 20,918 713 (838) 20,793

Accumulated Depreciation
Land
Buildings 5,945 196 6,141
Furniture & equipment 2,455 75 (31) 2,499
Computer equipment 4,067 309 (806) 3,570

Total 12,467 580 (837) 12,210

Net Book Value 8,451 133 (1) 8,583

(thousands of dollars) 2011

Opening
Balance

Additions/
Depreciation Disposals

Closing
Balance

Cost
Land $3,000 $ $ $ 3,000
Buildings 10,810 (83) 10,727
Furniture & equipment 2,715 39 (56) 2,698
Computer equipment 4,394 194 (95) 4,493
Total 20,919 233 (234) 20,918

Accumulated Depreciation
Land
Buildings 5,833 195 (83) 5,945
Furniture & equipment 2,424 87 (56) 2,455
Computer equipment 3,794 368 (95) 4,067

Total 12,051 650 (234) 12,467

Net Book Value $ 8,868 $ (417) $ $ 8,451
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(thousands of dollars) Cost
Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book
Value

Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 21,043 $ (6,572) $ 14,471
Additions 2,624 2,624
Disposals (69) 69
Amortization (1,841) (1,841)
Closing balance December 31, 2011 23,598 (8,344) 15,254
Additions 3,031 3,031
Disposals (124) 124
Amortization (2,084) (2,084)

Closing balance December 31, 2012 $ 26,505 $ (10,304) $ 16,201

Intangible assets include systems development costs for 2012 in the amount of $2,751,000 [2011
$2,045,000] related to internally generated systems which are still under development.

11. BANK INDEBTEDNESS

The Commission has established an operating line of credit with its banker in the amount of
$20,000,000. Advances on the line of credit bear interest at the bank’s prime interest rate minus
0.4%. The credit facility is unsecured and was utilized during 2012 to the amount of $5,000,000; of
which no amount was outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Accounts payable $ 13,336 $ 10,881
Amounts due to employees 675 705
Credit balances due to employers 3,117 3,172

$ 17,128 $ 14,758

Accounts payable includes a provision in the amount of $5,355,000 [2011 $5,099,000] for
amounts owing to employers under the Commission’s PRIME practice incentive program.
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13. ASSESSMENTS REVENUE

The Commission administers the Act for two groups of employers, referred to as assessment based
employers and self insured employers. Assessment based employers are insured through
“collective liability” and are required to contribute to the Commission’s injury fund, whereas self
insured employers are individually liable. The Commission pays the actual cost of claims for self
insured employers and bills them on a monthly basis for payments related to: short term disability,
including rehabilitation; health care; long term disability, including permanent functional
impairment awards; and survivor benefits, together with their proportionate share of
administration costs.

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Gross assessed employers $ 190,558 $ 181,476
Assessment reporting penalties & interest 1,506 1,499
PRIME refunds (5,355) (5,099)
Net assessment revenue
Self insured employers [note 22]

186,709
10,779

177,876
10,491

Total $ 197,488 $ 188,367
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14. BENEFIT LIABILITIES AND CLAIMS COSTS (continued)

The table below lists the principal economic assumptions used.

2012 2011

CPI Indexed
awards

Other
payments

CPI Indexed
awards

Other
payments

Gross rate of return 6.61% 6.61% 7.12% 7.12%

Inflation year 1 2.40% 3.00% 2.50% 3.50%
Inflation later years 3.00% 3.00% 3.50% 3.50%

Net rate of return year 1 4.11% 3.50% 4.51% 3.50%
Net rate of return later years 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

The benefit liability includes a provision for the cost of future claims administration. At December 31, 2012,
this was estimated at 8.5% of the benefit liability (2011 – 7%).

During 2012, the Commission’s independent actuaries completed a study of occupational disease exposure
in Newfoundland and Labrador. The purpose of the study was to develop a model capable of providing a
reasonable estimate of the present value of the cost of all future claims associated with occupational
diseases arising from exposure that has already occurred. Based on the results of the study, the actuaries
estimate a reasonable range would be 5.8% to 7.8 % of the benefit liability. Consequently, the Commission
has included a provision for latent occupational disease at December 31, 2012, of $63.4 million which is
estimated at 7% of the benefit liability.

The table below highlights the sensitivity of benefit liabilities and claims costs to changes in the key
assumptions.

(millions of dollars)

1% Change in assumption Impact Benefit Liabilities Claims Costs

Decrease discount rate Increase $ 77.4 $ 5.4
Increase inflation rate Increase $ 45.7 $ 3.4
Increase health care inflation Increase $ 27.4 $ 1.5
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15. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Public Service Pension Plan

The Commission’s contributions to the Public Service Pension Plan of $1,790,800 [2011 $1,675,800] are
included in administration expenses and have been expensed as incurred.

Severance payments and annual leave

The Commission provides a severance payment and a payment for accumulated annual leave balances to
employees upon retirement, resignation or termination without cause. In 2012, cash payments to
retirees for its unfunded employee future benefits amounted to $153,000 [2011 $105,000]. The last
actuarial valuation was performed effective December 31, 2012. The next actuarial valuation will be
performed as at December 31, 2015.

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 5,177 $ 4,485
Current service cost 391 399
Interest cost 242 232
Actuarial loss 248 166

6,058 5,282
Benefits paid (153) (105)

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 5,905 $ 5,177

The significant actuarial assumptions used in measuring the accrued benefit obligation and benefit
expense are as follows:

2012 2011

Discount rate – benefit cost 4.50% 5.00%
Discount rate – accrued benefit obligation 3.75% 4.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.50%
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16. ADMINISTRATION

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Salaries and employee benefits $ 28,464 $ 26,911
Office and communications 2,773 2,566
Professional fees 1,154 1,188
Building operations 891 1,342
Travel and vehicle operating 587 536

$ 33,869 $ 32,543

17. LEGISLATED OBLIGATIONS

The Commission is required by legislation to fund the operating costs of the Occupational, Health and
Safety Branch of Service NL in delivering their occupational health and safety mandate and all of the
costs of the Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation Review Division and the Statutory Review. The
Commission also reimburses the provincial government for a portion of the operating costs of the
Department of Advanced Education and Skills and the Labour Relations Agency in respect of
administering the Act. The Commission is required to fund the operating costs of the employer and
worker advisor positions. Total expenses incurred by the Commission for legislated obligations are
detailed below:

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Service NL, Advanced Education and Skills
and Labour Relations Agency $ 5,634 $ 5,645
Workplace Health, Safety and Compensation
Review Division 1,053 807
Employer and Worker Advisors 740 500
Statutory Review on WHSCC 197

$ 7,624 $ 6,952
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18. OTHER EXPENSES

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Sectoral advisors and grants $ 263 $ 240
Business improvement projects 329 1,280

$ 592 $ 1,520

19. RESERVES

As provided by legislation, the Commission maintains a reserve for funding studies, projects and research
relating to the enhancement of occupational health and safety in the workplace. During 2012, an
amount of $10,000 was charged to the reserve [2011 $80,000].

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

These financial statements include amounts resulting from normal operating transactions with various
provincial government departments, agencies, and Crown corporations with which the Commission may
be considered related. The provincial government is also a self insured employer, and account balances
resulting from these transactions are included in the financial statements and are settled under normal
trade terms.

The Commission has identified the Board of Directors and Senior Management team as related parties.
The Senior Management team includes the CEO, Executive Director of Employer Services, Executive
Director of Worker Services, Chief Financial and Information Officer, Executive Director of Corporate
Services, Director of Communications, Director of Human Resources, General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary, and Executive Assistant. Salary and benefits related to these parties is shown below:

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Number Total Number Total
Board of Directors 9 $ 131 9 $ 121
Senior Management 9 $ 1,318 9 $ 1,304
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21. INDUSTRY LEVY

The Commission has levied a surcharge of $0.10 per $100 of payroll on employers in the construction
sector to fund a portion of the operating costs of safety and health training programs conducted by
the Newfoundland and Labrador Construction Safety Association. The amounts collected on behalf of
the association totaled $1,153,000 [2011 $865,500] and are not included in the statement of
operations.

22. SELF INSURED EMPLOYERS

The financial statements include the effects of transactions carried out for self insured employers,
principally federal and provincial government bodies, who directly bear the costs of their own
incurred claims and a share of administration costs. The claims costs and administrative expenses
included in assessments revenue on the statement of operations are as follows:

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011

Claims costs incurred:
Short term disability $ 1,286 $ 1,268
Long term disability 3,730 3,984
Survivor benefits 472 571
Health Care 2,889 2,779
Administration charges 2,402 1,889

Revenue from self insured employers $ 10,779 $ 10,491

The benefit liabilities related to self insured employers have not been included in the benefits
liabilities account, as these liabilities will be borne by those employers when paid in future years.

23. COMMITMENTS

The Commission has committed to operating lease payments for office premises and equipment for
the years 2013 to 2015 in the amount of $230,000 annually.

24. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Commission’s long term financial strategy is to maintain a funded position that
will provide for the security of benefits promised to injured workers within employers’ reasonable
ability to pay assessments. The Commission’s funded position is defined by the relationship of total
assets to total liabilities and the Injury Fund is fully funded when the total assets equal or exceed total
liabilities. At December 31, the funded ratio was 91.7% (2011 – 91.8%). The Fund balance consists of
accumulated net operating deficits and the occupational health, safety and research reserve.
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24. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Board of Directors has established a funding target of total assets equal to 110% of total
liabilities. When the funded ratio is less than 100%, the Commission will adjust assessment rates paid
by employers over a fifteen year period to achieve the funding target. The Commission’s assessment
rates for 2011 and 2012 included an upward adjustment of $0.25 per $100 of payroll. This
adjustment will be retained until the 110% funding target is reached.

25. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the 2012 financial statement
presentation including property, plant and equipment; intangible assets; accounts payable and
accrued liabilities; and employee benefits.
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FIVE YEAR HISTORY
DECEMBER 21, 2012

Statement of Operations and Fund Deficiency
for the Years Ending December 31

(thousands of dollars) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Revenue
Assessments $ 197,488 $ 188,367 $ 166,220 $ 160,582 $ 152,440
Investment income (loss) 82,634 (11,602) 65,217 18,205 16,432
Third party recoveries 838 1,049 1,080 4,372

280,960 177,814 232,517 183,159 168,872

Expenses
Claims costs incurred 216,600 154,089 148,999 156,333 146,935
Administration 33,869 32,543 30,170 27,340 26,897
Legislated obligations 7,624 6,952 6,649 6,588 6,424
Amortization 2,664 2,491 2,179 2,555 2,859
Fee and interest 3,749 3,245 2,627 3,431 3,327
Actuarial adjustments 26,015 (1,245) (12,458) (6,725) (6,450)
Other 592 1,520 1,258 1,787 915

291,113 199,595 179,424 191,309 180,907

(Deficit) surplus for the year (10,153) (21,781) 53,093 (8,150) (12,035)

Fund deficiency, beginning of year (72,190) (50,409) (103,502) (188,756) (30,276)
Reserve balance, beginning of year 560 640 815 839 889
Total fund deficiency, beginning of year (71,630) (49,769) (102,687) (187,917) (29,387)

(Deficit) surplus for the year (10,153) (21,781) 53,093 (8,150) (12,035)
Appropriation of reserve fund (10) (80) (175) (24) (50)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 90,212 (146,445)
Total fund deficiency, end of year $ (81,793) $ (71,630) $ (49,769) $ (105,879) $ (187,917)

* 2008 – 2009 presented under Canadian GAAP, 2010 – 2012 presented under IFRS
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